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Annual Management Report for 2018

|. DEVELOPMENT AND RESULTS OF MATHIOS OPERATIONS IN 2018

MATHIOS JSC is a joint stock company, with a head office and registered address at 9 Nikola Malashevski str,
Dupnitsa, Republic of Bulgaria.

At end of 2018, the company has a production plant in Dupnitsa and a showroom in Sofia.

In the current year, as a result of the efforts of the Management, the financial indicators and the quality of
production have been stabilized, personnel turnover has been under control. Contractual relations with a large client have
been finalized, and it will substantially increase the market share of the company products in the Western European
markets and will provide greater financial autonomy to the Company.

Challenges for the management in 2018 are: the worsened macroeconomic parameters in the country. Labor
shortages and skilled staff (resulting in a 156% increase in labor costs compared to 2017 and 27% versus 2016), the
substantial increase in energy product prices (resulting in a 32% increase in their share of total cost versus 2017 and 51%
vs. 2016), the dynamically changing legal framework for the business, thus requiring substantial investments in technical
monitoring tools.

Revenues

In 2018, the company reports revenues from sales of production, goods and services. The tendency is towards
small growth (with 0.3%) of revenues from operations against 2017 and decrease (with 3%), compared to 2016. Revenues
from sale of production during the year are 5% lower than 2017 and 4% higher than 2016. The sales of goods increased
with 74% against 2017 and are with 27% less than in 2016. Other revenues are mainly for transport and transport
management of exported production. They depend mainly on the contracted terms of delivery of production and goods. The
tendency there is towards decrease — with 22% against 2017 and with 31% against 2018, proportionally to the sales volume
of production.

Revenue, BGN'000 2018 G’a"g".’,‘t,g ;/; G’:g"f’;g ;/; s h:féi/so 2017 h::e,,/so 2016 h:ze/s;
Revenue from sales of production 3540 -4.5 4.1 84.0 3707 88.2 3402 o -78 4
Revenue from sales of goods 524 73.5 =272 12.4 302 7.2 720 16.6
Other revenue ) 152 -22.1 -30.6 3.6 195 46 219 50
Total 4216 03 -2.9 100.0 4204 100.0 4341 100.0

In 2018, the products of Mathios AD are realised on the markets of EU member countries, Serbia, Macedonia and
others, as well as on the local market.

Production sold by market segments, 2018 Growth % Growth % Sales 2017 Sales 2016 Sales
BGN'000 _ ag.2017 B ag.2016  share % share % share %
Bulgaria 259 47.2 48.9 7.3 176 4.7 174 5.1
Greece 3224 7.7 0.5 91.1 3493 942 3208 94.3
Others - 57 B 50.0 185.0 1_.6_ B 38 1.0 20_ 0.6
Total 3540 -4.5 4.1 100.0 3707 100.0 3402 100.0

The share of sales in Bulgaria is higher with 47% against 2017 and with 49% against 2016. The share of sales in
Greece is 3% lower than 2017 and 2016. Their volume has decreased with 8% compared to the previous year and is 1%
higher compared to 2016. The share of sales in other markets is 2% of the total sales volume and their volume is variable
because the Company do not have constant clients
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Part of the revenues is from sales of goods, purchased from Mathios Refractories S.A. Those are mostly
refractories (mixes and bricks), acid-proof and other building materials (cement, mortar, vermiculite and others) and others.
As it is shown in the table below, the share of each of those groups has been changing during the years, largely depending
on client orders.

. Growth % Growth % Sales Sales Sales
Sales of goods, BGN'000 248 ag.2017 ag.2016  share % 2007 cpare % 2016 hare %
Stone veneer 18 100.0 200 3.4 9 3.0 15 2.1
Refractories and oth. bullding
materlals 460 90.1 -29.2 87.8 242 80.1 650 90.3
Other goods B - 56 -9.8 -16._4 _8.8 51 16.9 B 55 7.6
Total 524 735 -27.2 100.0 302 100.0 720 100.0

_ In 2018 the goods sales volume increased (with 74%) compared to 2017, mostly because of refractories sales
increase.

Product and Price Policy

The range of products and the volume of production depend largely on the orders of the main client — Mathios
Refractories S.A. In 2018, products with low demand are taken out and 30 new products are developed, based on large
new European client order. The total production range of the company includes 380 types and colours of stones. During the
last few years the below quantity of different types and colours were included in the production mix.

Product range, number of items 2018 2017 2016
Mathios Stones 112 119 120
Mathios Stone Slim New 80 89 92
Masterbricks 32 31 40
Pavers 5 5 6
Mathios Woods 6 4 6
ww 12

Others 3 11 8
Total 250 259 272

In the current year is observed increase (with 19%) of two traditional popular product lines demand — Mathios
Stone and Masterbrick - and its share becomes 80% of total production volume (63% in 2017), although decreased the
"slims” volume (with 57%) against previous year. Decrease is observed and in the total production sales volume (with 14%)
against 2017.

Produced units, sq.m/m 2018 Growth % 2017 Growth % 2016 Growth %
Mathios Stones 97760 126 82493 -24.9 86822 -20.9
Mathios Stone Slim New 34096 377 79600 2.3 54706 -32.9
Mastorbricks 23855 -24.0 20053 -30.4 31403 9.0
Pavers 1119 22.6 1216 49 913 -28.6
Mathios Woods 29 947 284  5260.0 543 10 145.3
WW De 970

Others 38 -97.2 438 -86.4 1360 576
Total 157867 4102 184083 8.0 175747 21.7

The products of the company target the middle price segment of the market, since the Mathios trademark relies on
high quality, original design and high endurance. Still, the company applies very flexible pricing policy as it offers
differentiated prices to its regular clients depending on the volume of their orders, payment terms, their supply network and
others.

The company continues to maintain its whole product assortment, while developing new products in the lower price
segment. It executes specific colour orders in order to meet client demand.

For its largest client, the company provides prices, considered with respect to the volume of orders and the variety
and size of the requested product lines.

2
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Clients

The largest part of revenues in 2018 is from sales of own production — 84% (88% in 2017). The sales of goods
form about 12% (7% in 2017) of the total volume of revenues from sales (increased refractory deliveries).

In 2018, the company again relies on permanent clients, the most significant of which is Mathios Refractories. It
continues the efforts for developing new markets, not only in Europe, but also in other continents — Asia, America and

others.
Clients, turnover BGN'000 2018 Share of 2017 Share of 2016 Share of
(VAT included) turnover % turnover % turnover %
MATHIOS REFRACTORIES 3483 80.0 3798 88.6 3527 78.4
AiS - 3C 147 3.4 37 0.9 282 6.3
ENERGOREMONT 242 5.6 84 20 236 5.2
IKM COMPANY 139 3.2 36 0.8 64 1.4
SOFIA MED 15 0.3 8 0.2 25 0.6
TERMOX 51 1.2 21 0.5 26 0.6
OTHERS 278 6.4 301 7.0 337 7.5
Total 4 355 100.0 4 285 100.0 4 497 100.0

Suppliers

For its production needs, the company receives supplies of basic and supplementary materials, as well as services
and others. It uses transport services exclusively from Bulgarian companies for delivery of production to different clients in
the European Union and elsewhere. Larger part of the raw materials for production in 2018 are provided by local suppliers,
which are chosen after comparison analysis for quality, prices and delivery terms according to several offers. The basic
supplier of colouring agents, activators and moulds for production, remains Mathios Refractories S.A., because those
materials do not have alternative locally.

ﬁzﬁ)ﬂ;)ers, turnover BGN'000 (vAT Supply type 2018 2017 2016
MATHIOS REFRACTORIES S.A materials and goods,rentals 1255 1248 1898
KDK TERM transportation services 302 349 436
DALKAFOUKI . MARIA pumice 255 231 218
DUROPACK/BELPACK cartoons 332 293 266
STROI CEM/PROMST cement 431 497 323
ARESGAS/ TOLIVOGAS iquefied petroleum gas (LPG) 146 143 112
TIMBER HOUSE/I-BISS pallets 101 99 99
SHENKER/SOFIDA transportation services 38 15 31
CHEZ ELECTRO electricity 101 93 82
MERIDIAN building works,sand 112 39 54
SIKA BULGARIA activators 79 48 61
LOBI KAR TRANS&CO sand 34 60 4
BTC telephones 4 5 6
OTHERS 549 573 531

Main risks and problems of the business environment

o Main indicators of the commercial environment

The main indicators of the commercial environment, which influence the operations of the group for the period 2013
— 2018, are presented in the table below:

Indicator / Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
GDP in min. BGN * 82.166 82.634 88.571 94130  101.043 107.095"
Real growth of the GDP 0,9% 1,7% 3,0% 3,4% 3.5% 3,1%*
Inflation at the end of the year -1,6% -0,9% -0,4% 0,1% 2,1% 2,8
Average rate of USD/BGN for the year 1.47 1.47 1,76 1,77 1,74 1,66
USD/BGN rate at the end of the year 1,41902 1,60841 1,79007 1,85545 1,63081 1,70815
Central interest rate at the end of the year 0,02% 0,02% 0,01% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%
Unemployment at the end of the year 12,9% 11,4% 9,1% 7.6% 71% 6,1%*

* The data is towards December 31, and is preliminary
“* The data is towards the third quarter and is preliminary

Evaluation of the risk level for the commercial environment: moderate

Source: BNB,NSI

3
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+ Political risk

In 2018 the tendency of political governance uncertainty still persists because of the broad-based coalition
governments and the active social role of nationalist social formations.

An important element of political uncertainty is brought in by the US's aggressive foreign policy and the lack of any
agreement between the UK and the EU on Brexit relations.

Bulgaria's policy of low tax burdens over the past few years has been maintained in Bulgaria, thus guaranteeing a
certain degree of stability and possibility for tax expense planning/budgeting. Social insurance burdens keep their lowest

levels in the EU, a serious factor for investment intentions,
Evaluation of the political risk level: moderate to high

e Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the operation of companies with different types of currency and the volatility of currency
rates. Mathios AD executes its transactions exclusively in BGN and EUR. The currency risk of transactions in EUR is
currently limited due to its fixed exchange rate guaranteed by the Currency Monetary Board.

As all the assets of the company are in BGN and are linked to the fixed exchange rate to the Euro, - there is no

significant currency risk for the Company.
Currency risk level: low

e Regulatory risk

Regulatory risk may arise due to the functions of the State in its capacity as a regulator — for Bulgaria, the priority
of state regulation are the working conditions in enterprises and the preservation of natural resources. In the EU, eco-
industries are a priority and a subject of reinforced control. This requires manufacturing plants in Bulgaria to
contribute/devote significant resources to bringing their business in compliance with the European requirements.

Over the recent years, both in Bulgaria and in other European countries, @ number of restrictive normative acts
have been adopted considerably limiting the business and imposing @ number of social functions funds of the national
budgets have been cut.

In particular, in Bulgaria, government authorities undertake a number of business monitoring and control measures,
obliging the business to invest in technical inspection means and restructuring the operation reporting systems. This has
createdissues for international companies in particular, as it requires changes in their job structures designed to be

compatible with overseas branches and affiliated companies.
Regulatory risk level: low to moderate

e Price risk

Prices of raw materials in 2018 show a slight increase than the 2017 levels. Service, electricity, fuel, and other prices
continue to rise substantially, resulting in higher product costs and weaker demand..

Mathios Group keeps prices at levels from previous periods and applies differentiated price policy for its clients. Due
to the growth in labour costs and the prices of some materials, however, grows and the cost of the products. This way the

net margin decreases and the company becomes unable to cover its operations costs.
Price risk level: moderate

o Credit risk

The credit risk arises mainly from the sales with deferred payments. The risk that the company would not be able
to collect its receivables is kept at minimum level as conditions for deferred payment are agreed with only three clients,

while for all others is applied immediate payment.
Credit risk level: low to moderate

o Risk of cash flows bearing interest

In regard to incoming cash flows there is no such risk as they are formed by the revenues and cash. The first does
not bear interest and the cash and cash equivalents are in checking accounts and receive insignificant interests, which are
relatively stable for the period.

For the outgoing cash flows, however, there is risk, since they are formed in two groups — towards commercial
contract parties (mostly without interest) and towards government and credit institutions. As of December 31 the company
uses bank loans for operating funds, where the interest is tied to the base annual rate.

Risk level of cash flows bearing interest: moderate
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IIl. ANALYSIS OF THE PROPERTY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

1. Property state and capital structure

As of December 31 the company has non-current assets with balance value of 1.939 thousand BGN, (of which
acquired in 2018 - for 105 thousand BGN). Newly acquired assets include facilities, machinery and equipment.
In 2018 increased all inventories: of production ready for sale (with 13%) and goods (with 13%), and of materials

(with 2%), compared to 2017.
As of December 31, the receivables from clients are 24 thousand BGN, and increased with 17% against 2017, due

to sales realised end of year with 30 days delayed payment agreement.

ASSETS BGN'000 Relative share % Growth
2018 2017 2018 2017 absolute relative
A. FIXED ASSETS 1951 1814 50.7 48.5 137 7.6
1 Non-current tangible and nont. assets 1939 1799 50.4 48.1 140 7.8
2 Deffered Taxes 12 15 0.3 04 (3) -20.0
5. CURRENT ASSETS 1896 1928 49.3 51.5 (32) 1.7
1 Inventory 1687 1577 43.9 42.1 110 7.0
2 Trade and other receivables 148 230 3.8 6.1 (82) -35.7
3 Cash and cash equivalents 51 99 1.3 2.6 (48) -48.5
4 Prepaid expenses 10 22 0.3 0.6 (12) -54.5
TOTAL ASSETS 3847 3742 100.0 100.0 105 2.8

The following changes in the capital structure are observed in comparison to the previous reported period: the
shareholders’ equity has decreased with 22% against 2017, due to the negative financial result for 2018. The current
liabilities increased by 461 thousand BGN (or 21%); there is 85% increase in the liabilities to the mother-company; the
amount of other current liabilities is lower than 2017: to trade counterparties — by 15%, to financial institutions - by 57%, and
to personnel - by 33%.

BGN‘000 Relative share % Growth
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

2018 2017 2018 2017 absolute relative
A SHAREHODERS' EQUITY 1234 1590 321 42.5 (356) -22.4
|  Fixed capital 400 400 10.4 10.7 0 0.0
Il Reserves 40 40 1.0 1.1 0 0.0
I} Financial result 794 1150 20.6 30.7 (356) -31.0
1 Financial result from previous periods 1150 1705 29.9 45.6 (555) -32.6
2 Current financial result (356) (555) -9.3 -14.8 199 35.9
B. CURRENT LIABILITIES 2613 2152 67.9 57.5 461 21.4
1 Liabilities to finansial institutions 163 377 4.2 101 (214) -56.8
2 Trade and other liabilities 2 346 1620 61.0 43.3 726 44.8
3 Liabilities to personnel 104 155 27 4.1 (51) -32.9
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3847 3742 100.0 100.0 105 2.8

2. Analysis of the financial state

a. Liquidity — the indicator is used to determine a company's ability to pay off its short-terms debt obligations. Therefore, the
liquidity level is examined by the ratio of current assets to current liabilities.

Indexes, BGN'000 2018 2017 Growth abs. Growth %
1 Inventory 1687 1577 110 7.0
2 Trade receivables without prep. expences 146 206 -60 -29.1
3 Cash and cash equivalents 51 99 -48 -48.5
_4 Current liabilities 2613 2152 461 21.4
Liquidity factors
Current ratio = (1+2+3 )/ 4 0.72 0.87 -0.15 -17.6
Quick ratio = (2+3)/ 4 0.08 0.14 -0.07 -46.8
Cash position ratio=3/4 0.020 0.046 -0.026 -57.6
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As shown in the table, all liquidity factors in 2018 shows deterioration against 2017. The quick ratio is lower than 1
(indicates company's ability to cover its current liabilities with by highly liquid assets, preferred rate is 1 or higher) and its
deterioration is with 47% against 2017 (less liquid assets and more current liabilities). The current ratio for 2018 is fower
than 1, implying the company has no the ability to cover current liabilities with current assets, and shows deterioration
against 2017 by 18%, mostly due to increased liabilities to the mother-company.

The cash position ratio indicates the level of current liabilities that could be covered by cash and cash equivalents
available. It shows deterioration against 2017 by 58%, again due to increased current liabilities.

b. Financial autonomy — it defines the level of independence of the company from its creditors, or the level of liabilities
coverage by the shareholiders’ equity of the company.

Indexes, BGN'000 2018 2017 Growth abs. Growth %
1 Shareholders’ equity 1234 1590 (356) -22.4
2 Current liabliities 2613 2152 461 21.4
3 Total liabilities 3 847 3742 105 28
Financlal autonom;@o
Financlal autonomy ratio=1/3 0.32 0.42 -0.10 -24.5
Debtratio=2/3 0.68 0.58 0.10 18.1
Financial leverage =2/1 212 1.35 0.76 56.5
Interests coverage = EBIT/Interests -18.82 -26.40 7.58 28.7

The first two ratios are reversely proportional and show the ratio of equity/attracted capital. The financial autonomy
ratio is lower than one (implying dependence on creditors), it shows deterioration by 25% against previous year. The debt
ratio shows the company operates with 68% attracted capital in 2018, which is 18% more than in 2017.

The financial leverage ratio indicates the extent to which the business relies on debt financing. It is higher than
one, implying an increased risk for the company's financial autonomy. The ratio shows deterioration by 57% against
2017, due to higher current liabilities and lower equity as a result of the loss generated during the period.

The interest coverage ratio shows the ability of the company to cover the interest expenses by its operating
income. It is negative, implying the company is not in condition to cover the interest expenses on debt by its operating
income (in this case loss).
¢. Return ratio — the amount of net income returned as a percentage of the invested capital.

Return ratlo = Net profit/ Capital 2018 2017 Growth abs. Growth %
Return on sales ratio (0.08) (0.13) 0.05 36.0
Current financial resuit (3586) (555) 199 35.9
Amount of sales 4216 4204 12 0.3
Return on long-term assets ratio (0.18) (0.31) 0.12 40.5
Current financial result (356) (555) 199 359
Fixed assets 1 939 1799 140 7.8
Return on current assets ratio (0.19) (0.29) 0.10 34.8
Current financial result (356) (555) 199 35.9
Current assets 1896 1928 (32) -1.7
Return on current liabllitles ratio (0.14) (0.26) 0.12 47.2
Current financial result (356) (555) 199 35.9
Current liabilities 2613 2152 461 21.4
Return on equity ratio (0.29) (0.35) 0.06 17.4
Current financial result (356) (555) 199 35,9
Shareholders’ equity 1234 1590 (356) -22.4

The return on sales ratio indicates how much profit is generated by 1 BGN revenues. Its value for 2018 is negative
- (0.08 BGN) and compared to the previous period shows improvement by 36% as a result of management's efforts to
improve the production efficiency and optimization of the expenses (as result — less losses for 2018 with 199 thousand
BGN).

All the return ratios show improvement compared to the previous year, due to the upper reasons.

The return on equity ratio, significant to investors, shows that for 2018, the company has generated (0.29) BGN
loss for every 1 BGN invested by shareholders.
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d. Assets turnover — for the need of the analysis the coefficient is calculated based on the times of turnover of the asset type
for the reported period and the days necessary for a full turnover of the same.

indices, BGN'000

1 Amount of sales
2 Current assets
2a Incl. inventory
2b Incl. rec. from clients, incl. adgudicated
3 Current liabllitles
3a incl. Liabilitles towards suppliers
Turnover rate

4 Net working capital=2-3
5 Turnover rate of NWC = 1/ average 4
6 Current assets turnover ratio=1/2
7 Inventory turnover ratio =1/ 2a
8 Receivables from clients turn. = 1/2b
9 Liabilities to suppliers turnover =1/3a B
Days of converting

Current assets turnover ratio = 360/ p. 6
Inventory turnover ratio = 360/p. 7
Receivables turnover =360/p. 8
Liabilities to suppliers turnover =360/p. 9

2018 2017 Growth abs. Growth %
4216 4 204 12 03
1 896 1928 (32) 1.7
1687 1577 110 7.0

24 20 4 20.0
2613 21562 461 21.4
2327 1603 724 45.2

=717 -224 (493) -220.1

-9.0 233.6 (243) -103.8

2.2 2,2 0 2.0

2.5 27 0) -6.3
175.7 210.2 (35) -16.4

18 2.6 (1) o -30.9

162 165 (3) -1.9
144 135 9 6.7

2 2 0 19.7
199 137 61 44.8

The first indicator, reviewed, is the net working capital - the difference between current assets and liabilities of the
company. It is negative in 2018, and shows a decrease by 220% compared to 2017, due to higher current liabilities.

There is also a decrease in the liabilities to suppliers turnover ratio — by 45%, the receivables from clients turnover
ratio — by 20%,and inventory turnover ratio — by 7%, the current assets turnover ratio shows low improvement compared to

2017 — by 2%.

e. Earnings per share

In addition to the accounting measurements for the efficiency of the company's business operations, the market
valuation of the company is significant to the owners of the capital. Investing funds in a joint stock company and payment of
a dividend is a mutually dependent process, which is a challenge for the corporative management. It is measured by the

ratios of balance value per share and earning per share. These ratios

Earnings per share

1 Net value per share, BGN
Shareholders’ equity, BGN'000
Average number of shares
2 Earning per share, BGN
Net profit / lost, BGN'000
Reserves by law (max.10% of reg. capital), BGN'000
Net profit/lost av. to shareholders’, BGN'000

The balance value per share for the year 2018 is 3.09 BGN, showing a

have the following values for the company:

2018 2017 Growht
absolute relative
3.09 3.98 (0.89) -22.4
1234 1590 (356) -22.4
400 000 400 000 0 0.0
(0.89) (1.39) 0.50 3569
(356) (555) 199 35.9
0 0 _0 B 0.0
(356) (555) 199 35.9

decrease by 22% against 2017. The

earnings for the shareholders generated by one share for the year 2018 are negative (0.89) BGN, which is 36% higher than

in 2017,



f. Structure of expenses and indicators for effectiveness

Indexes, BGN'000 2018 2017 Growth abs.
|. Earnings from bussiness oparations - 42186 4204 _12
Il. Cost for the bussiness operations, incl. (4 536) (4 732) 196
1 for materials (1678) (1733) 55
2 for external services and others (1128) (1306) 178
3 for the personnel (1378) (1 308) (70)
4 correctives (154) (212) 58
EBITD (122) (355) 233

5 Expenses for depreciations (198) (173) (25)
EBIT (320) (528) 208

\Il. Financial revenues / expenses, net (33) (33) 0
IV. EBT (353) (561) 208
V. Income tax (3) 6 (9)
Vi. Net profit/ loss (356) (555) 199
Created value in the company=3+5+1V 1223 920 303
Cost eficiency = 1/ (Il +1li) 0.92 0.88 0.04
Revenues eficiency = (Il + 1) /1 1.08 1.13 -0.05
Average number of the personnel 77 83 -6
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Growth %

0.3
4.1
3.2
13.6
-5.4
27.4

65.6
-14.5
39.4
0.0
371

-150.0
35.9

32.9

46
44
7.2

The newly created value in the company is in the amount of 1 223 thousand BGN and has increased by 33%
relative to the previous year's results. It includes expenses for employees, depreciation, operating income and income
taxes, and expresses the created value in the company, which is a benefit to the whole society. The coefficient for
effectiveness of expenses is lower than 1, implying the company is not able to cover the costs of for its operations by the

generated revenue.
The average number of employees in 2018 has decreased with 7%

December, it has the following structure of professional qualification (number of employees in each category).
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compared to previous year, and as of 31

The annual financial statement of the company was prepared on Feb. 20, 2019. No significant events have

occurred since the date of the annual financial statement.

IV. POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY AND ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND

INNOVATION

The intentions of the management is to continue developing the operations of the company in 2019, while
financing would be achieved through own funds and attracted capital where necessary.
The company has issued a long-term business plan designed to improve working conditions, implementing ISO
requirements and optimizing the automation of the production process in order to increase labor productivity and comply

with the requirements of the national and European legistation related to the protection of environment.

The management does not plan to make transactions beyond the common ones for the company.
The company does not have undertakings in the field of research and development.
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V. INFORMATION FOR THE EQUITY OF THE COMPANY REQUIRED UNDER ARTICLE 187D AND 247 OF THE
COMMERCE ACT

As of 31 December, 2018, the equity capital is fully deposited in the amount of 400 000 BGN and equal to 400 000
shares with nominal value of 1 BGN each.

Shareholders are as follows:

1. Companies JC — 99,9975 % of capital (399 990 shares)
2. Private persons — 0,0025 % of capital (10 shares)

The statue of the company does not provide for buyback of shares and there is no such decision taken in 2018 by
the General Assemblyn

o Remuneration, received in total for 2018 and 2017 from the members of the Board are as follows:

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Salaries (249) (335)
Social insurances - (12) _(13)
Total deals with key management peronnel (261) (348)

o Shares owned or transferred by the members of the Board of Directors

- 10 named shares with nominal value of 1 BGN each (0.0025% of the equity of the company) are owned by
loannis K. Mathios.
- Members of the Board of Directors have not acquired or transferred shares of the company in the current year.

« Rights of the members of the Board of Directors to acquire shares of the company — members of the Board
of Directors acquire shares under the general terms, in compliance with the current legislation.

o Members of the Board of Directors, acting as unlimited liable shareholders, holding more than 25% of the
equity of the other company, as well as their participation in other entities or cooperations as procurators,
directors of board members

- loannis Mathios — holding 100% of the equity of IKM Company EOOD and manager of the same entity;
- Nikolaos Tsamourdzis — holding 100% of the equity of Athina 2014 EOOD and manager of the same entity.

o Agreements under article 240b from the Commerce Act, stipulated during the year — there are no
agreements in 2018 under the terms of article 240b of the Commerce Act.

» Commercial policy planned for the following year — estimated investments, employee development, estimated
income from investments and development of the company, significant upcoming deals for the business of the company

In 2019, the Company plans to reinforce good manufacturing practices that guarantee high quality products. Efforts
will also be directed at maintaining the low level of staff turnover as it was in 2018,by investing in good working conditions
and higher than average wages in this industry.

It is planned to implement 100% of the agreed assortment with the new client, as a result of the successful
accomplishment of the planned sales the financial autonomy of the Company will improve and will ensure a higher price
margin.

The planned investments are in tangible assets and human resources amounting to about BGN 200 thousand,
their expected profitable return being about BGN 60 thousand

It is also planned to continue the expansion of the refractory market, where the company is an exclusive
representative for Bulgaria.

VI. BRANCH OFFICES AND DETACHED DEPARTMENTS

The company does not have registered branches under the Commerce Act.
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VIl. CORE PROBLEMS AND RISKS

The contractual relations with the new West European customer set requirements for constantly high quality
products, very good planning in order to meet time schedules, uncompromising production control at all stages of the
production process until unloading of the products in the customer's warehouses. For this purpose, it is crucial to maintain
the trained qualified staff and to increase their level of quaiification through trainings and promotions.

In the Companywarehouses, the finished product is still on hold to be sold, in order to free financial resources for
the implementation of the current development plans.

More active marketing and promotional activity is needed on local and Balkan markets in order to create a lasting
presence in the distribution network as well as increase sales volumes.

February 20, 2019

Prepared by: r Manager:

(Katia Basheva) T




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of “MATHIOS” AD

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of “MATHIOS” AD (the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, (or give
a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and (of) its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements of the Independent
Financial Audit Act (IFAA) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bulgaria, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of the IFAA
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
management report prepared by management in accordance with Chapter Seven of the
Accountancy Act, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon, unless and to the extent explicitly specified in our report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.



Additional Matters to be Reported under the Accountancy Act

In addition to our responsibilities and reporting in accordance with ISAs, in relation to the
management report, we have also performed the procedures added to those required under ISAs in
accordance with the Guidelines of the professional organisation of certified public accountants and
registered auditors in Bulgaria, i.e. the Institute of Certified Public Accountants (ICPA). These
procedures refer to testing the existence, form and content of this other information to assist us in
forming an opinion about whether the other information includes the disclosures and reporting
provided for in Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act applicable in Bulgaria.

Opinion in connection with Art. 37, paragraph 6 of the Accountancy Act
Based on the procedures performed, our opinion is that:

a) The information included in the management report referring to the financial year for which
the financial statements have been prepared is consistent with those financial statements.

b} The management report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
Seven of the Accountancy Act.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Darinka Ignatova =

———

Registered CPA, respo_nsible fcgﬁihe audit

Sofia, 45 Bulgaria blvd., fl. 2, office 3
10 April 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at December 31, 2018

Note 018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000

Assets
Non-current assets
Property,plant and equipement 31 1,929 1,789
Intangible assets 32 10 10
Deferred tax assets 12 15
Total non-current assets 1,951 1,814
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 156 228
Inventories 6 1,687 1,577
Cash and cash equivalents 7 51 99
Receivables from related pastiss 4 2 24
Total current assets 1,896 1,928
Total assets 3,847 3,742
Liabllitles and equit
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Liabilites to reiste:) naties 11.1 1,799 1,088
Liabilities to financial companies 11.2 163 377
Trade and other liabilities 11.3 547 532
Liabilities to personnel 11.4 104 155
Total current liabilities 2,613 2,162
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 8 400 400
Reserves 9 40 40
Retained earnings 10 794 1,150
Total equity 1,234 1,590
Total liabilities and equity 3,847 3,742

The statement of finarcial pasition and the corresponding noles, presented on pages 5 to 38, are inseparable
parnt of the Annual Financial Reporl, which is approved and signed by the Board of Direclors on 20.62.2019.

February 20, 2019 e <
I/

’;
(Katia Bashieva)

Financial report prepared by:':l

Darinka Ignatova
registered CPA, responsible for the audit
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Annual financial report 2018

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended December 31, 2018

Note 2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Revenue 121 4,216 4,204
Other gains/(losses), net 122 133 8
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 149 33
Raw materials and consumables used 13 (1,678) (1,733)
Administrative and selling expenses 14 (1,128) (1,306)
Employee benefits expense 15 (1,378) (1,308)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 (198) (173)
Cost of goods sold (436) (253)
Profit from operations (320) (528)
Finance income/cost, net 16 (33) (33)
Profit before taxes (353) (561)
Income tax expense 17 (3) 6
Profit for the year (356) (555)
Other comprehensive income » x
Total comprehensive Income for the year (356) (555)
2018 2017

BGN BGN

Earnings per share 18 (0.89) (1.39)

The statement of comprehensive income and the corresponding notes, presented on pages 5 to 30, are inseparable
part of the Annual Financial Report

February 20, 2019 ,
A /
Financial report prepared by: [ ‘\_;,4 e )_/” Executive Director:;
(Katia Basheva) (loannis K.
Darinka Ignatova g _fw

registered CPA, responsible for the audit
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Annual financlal report 2018

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Using the direct method
for the year ended December 31, 2018

2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flow, related to customers 4,037 3,054
Cash flow, related to suppliers (2,489) (2,151)
Cash flow, related to payrolis (1,431) (1,230)
Cash flow, related to interests on operating loans, bank fees and others (24) (28)
Cash flow from positive and negative currency differences (6) )
Other operating cash flow - 197 307
Net cash generated by operating activities 284 (52)

Cash flows from Investing activities
Cash flow, related to non-current assets (118) (19)
Net cash used in investing activities (118) (19)

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash flows from loans : (214) 27
Net cash used In flnancing activities (214) 27
Netincrease/decrease In cash and cash equlvalents (48) (44)
Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the year 99 143
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 51 99

The statement of tash fluws and the corresponding notes, presenled on pages 5 to 38, are inseparable

pant of the Annual Financial Report
February 20, 2019

mi o
Financial report prepared by: .r: ~, 'y /4 Executive Director:
i f

74
/{/‘ 1
(Katia Basheva) / (loannis K. Mathias

Darinka Ignatova ——
registered CPA, responsible for the audit
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended December 31, 2018

Balance at January 01, 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at December 31, 2017

Total comprehensive Income for the year

Balance at December 31, 2018

The statement of changes in equity and the corresponding notes, presented on pages 5 to 3¢, are Inseparable
part of the Annual Financial Report,

February 20, 2019

Flnancial report prepared by: a)
(Kati

Darinka Ignatova

registered CPA, responsible fcrr)f.fre audit

Equlty capital Reserves  Retalned eamings Total
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
400 40 1,706 2,145
- - (655)  (655)

400 40 1.160 1.590

- - (356) (356)

400 40 794 1,234




MATHIOS AD
Notes to financial statements 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2018

1. General information

MATHIOS AD is a joint stock company, registered with corporate case No. 8462/2004 of the City Court of
Sofia and corporate case No. 800/2005 of the District Court of Ruse. The company’s head office and registered
address is Dupnitsa, 9 Nikola Malashevski str., Republic of Bulgaria.

The company is governed by a three-member board of directors and is represented by an Executive
Director.

The business operations of the company are production of stone veneer and sale of own production, goods
and services.

The current financial statement is approved by the management on 20 February 2019.

The management is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements, which give correct
and honest notion of the financial position, results from operations, cash flows and changes in the shareholders’

equity of the enterprise.
2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Basis for preparation of the financial statements

The financial statement of Mathios AD has been prepared in accordance with all International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), which comprise Financial Reporting Standards and the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations, approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB),
as well as the International Accounting Standards (IAS) and the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)
interpretations, approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC), which are effectively in force
on 1 January 2018 and have been adopted by the Commission of the European Union. IFRS, endarsed by EU, is the
generally accepted name of the general purpose framework — the basis of accounting equivalent to the framework
introduced with the definition in § 1, p. 8 of the Additional Provisions of the Accountancy Act under the name of
"International Accounting Standards" (IASs).

For the current financial year the Company has adopted all new and/or revised standards and
interpretations, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and respectively, by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), which have been relevant to its activities.

The adoption of these standards and/or interpretations, effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2018, has caused changes in Company's accounting policies, respectively in the classification and measurement of
individual reporting items and transactions.

The new and/or amended standards and interpretations include:

e IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" (in force for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 — endorsed
by EC). This is a new standard for financial instruments. It is ultimately intended to replace IAS 39 in its
entirety. IFRS 9 introduces a requirement that financial assets are to be classified based on entity's business
model for their management and on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the respective assets. It
establishes two primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost and fair value. There is
a significant change in the methodology for determining impairment, since it provides application of the
“expected credit loss” model.

e IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (in force for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 - endorsed by EC). This is an entirely new standard. It introduces a single complex of
principles, rules and approaches for recognition, accounting for and disclosure of information about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainties related to revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers. It will supersede all current standards related to revenue recognition, mainly IAS 18 and IAS 11
and the interpretations thereto. The main principle of the new standard is to provide a stepwise model
whereby revenue amount and timing reflect the obligation characteristics and performance of each of the
parties to the transaction. The standard allows a full retrospective approach or a modified retrospective
approach from the beginning of the current reporting period with particular disclosures for prior periods.

There are not new and/or revised standards and interpretations, issued by the IASB, respectively by the
IFRIC, which are in force from for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and which would be relevant
to the company’s operations in the following reporting period.

2.2 Functional currency

The financial statement is prepared in Bulgarian Leva (BGN), also called functional currency and
representational currency. The figures in the statement and its supplements are presented in thousands of Leva,
except when explicitly stated otherwise.

5



MATHIOS AD

Notes to financial statements 2018

2.3 Comparison data

The company presents comparable information in this financial statement for one preceding year. The
comparison data is reclassified and recalculated, where necessary, in order to achieve greater comparability relative

to changes in the disclosure for the current year.
The management has not adopted the amendments in IAS 1, as far it is not necessary to change the name

of the Statement of Comprehensive Income with the new one — Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income.
With respect to the application of IFRS and 15, the company has chosen modified retroactive application of

the new rules of the standard from 1 January 2018. Therefore, comparable data for 2017 is not recalculated.

2.4 Use of approximate accounting estimations

The preparation of the financial statement in compliance with IFRS requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and reasonable assumptions, which influence the reported values of the assets and liabilities,
the revenues and expenses, and the disclosures of conditional receivables and payables towards the date of the
statement. Those approximate estimations and assumptions are based on the information, which is available towards
the date of the financial statements, thus future factual results could be different.

2.4.1 Fair value measurement

Some of the assets and liabilities of the enterprise are valued and presented and/or disclosed only at fair
value for the purpose of financial reporting. These include:

. On repeating basis - bank loans received or loans from third parties, trade and other receivables
and payables, financial lease receivables and payables, financial assets held for sale, and others.
. On non-repeating basis — non-current assets, held for sale.

The fair values is the price that would be received at the disposal of a given asset or paid for the transfer of a
given liability in an ordinary transaction between independent market participants on the date of the valuation.

The enterprise applies different valuation techniques, which are appropriate with respect to the specific
circumstances, and for which there is enough input data, while aiming to use a maximum level of publicly available
information, respectively to minimise the use of unobservable information. It uses all three methods available — the
marekt approach, the income approach, and the cost approach, while the first two ones are applied most.

The enterprise needs to apply fair value for measurement on repeating basis for financial assets held for
sale, respectively on non-repeating basis — non-current assets, held for sale.

The fair value of all assets and liabilities, which are measured and disclosed in the financial statements, are
classified under the following hierarchy of fair values:

. Level 1 - Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.
. Level 2 - Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including when quoted prices are subject to significant

corrections.
. Level 3 — Measurement techniques, using inputs that are largely not observable.

The enterprise applies mainly fair value under level 1 and level 2.
2.5 The going concern principle

The financial statement of the company is prepared according to the going concern principle, which
assumes the company will continue its business operations as usual in the foreseeable future.

2.6 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are reported at currency rates on the day of the transaction. Cash assets and
liabilities in foreign currency are reported at the fixing rate of the Bulgarian National Bank towards the date of the
accounting balance. Negative or positive currency differences are reported in the statement of comprehensive
income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at value that includes the price of acquisition as well as
all expenses needed for bringing the asset into working condition.

Following valuation is performed by the recommended approach, i.e. price of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The impairment losses are reported as an expense and are recognized as such
in the statement of comprehensive income for the period.

Following costs related to particular property, plant or equipment are added to the balance value of the asset
when it is possible the company to have economic benefits exceeding the initial evaluated efficiency of the existing

6
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asset. All other following costs for maintenance, repairs and substitution of minor components of properties, plants
and equipment are reported currently as maintenance expenses and are recognized as such for the period in which
they have been made.

The non-depreciated part of the substituted components is written off the balance value of the assets and is
recognized as current expense for the period of reconstruction. All other following costs are recognized as expenses
for the period, in which they are made.

When the balance value of particular property, plant or equipment is higher than its refundable value, it
should be devalued to its refundable value.

The company has approved a value level of 700 Leva (BGN) for recognition of Properties, plants and

equipment.

Impairment of assets

The balance values of property, plant and equipment are subject to review for impairment when there are
events or changes in the circumstances indicating that the balance values might differ permanently from their
refundable values. If such indicators are evident, where the approximately defined refundable value is lower than the
balance value, the latest is written down to the refundable value of the asset.

The refundable value of property, plant and equipment is the higher from the following two: fair value without
sale costs or value in use. In order to determine the value in use of assets, future cash flows are discounted to their
present value by applying the discount rate before taxes, which reflects the current market conditions and estimations

of the time value of money and risks, specifically for the corresponding asset.
Impairment losses are reported in the statement of comprehensive income, except when a revaluation

surplus is formed for that particular asset. Then the impairment is treated as a decrease in this surplus, except if it
exceeds the surplus amount, so the exceeding value is included as an expense in the statement of comprehensive
income.

2.8 Depreciation

The company uses the linear method for depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 3). Land is not
depreciated. The useful life under groups of assets is considered with respect to the physical wear out, the specifics
of the equipment, and future intensions for usage. When different parts of certain asset have different useful life, they
are differentiated into independent components for the purpose of depreciation.

The useful life of the main groups of assets as of 31 December 2018, determined by the management after

review, is as follows:

2018, 2017,

years years
i —= =
Equipment 25 25
Plant 3.3 375
Automobiles 4 4
Transport vehicles (excl. automobiles) 10 10
Installations and other equipment 6,7 6,7
Computer hardware 2 2

The useful life of an asset should be reviewed at the end of each statement period, if expectations differ from

previous estimates, any change is accounted prospectively.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the month following the date, on which they have been
acquired, and internally created assets are depreciated from the month following the date, on which they have been

brought into use.
2.9 Intangible assets

Initially assets are measured at acquisition cost. Intangible assets are recognized when it is possible for the
entity to receive economic benefits in the future as a result from possessing the asset and when the cost of the asset

could be valued fairly.
After the initial recognition, the intangible assets are valued at acquisition cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised for the period of their useful life using the linear

method as follows:

2018 2017

years years

Software 2 2
Patents, rights of usage and other rights 25 25
Others,contractual terms of usage 3 3
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2.10 Investments

The company does not have investments under the meaning of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, IAS 28 Investment in Associates, IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and IAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement.

2.11 Inventories

The main components of inventories are production ready for sale, goods and materials (note 6). They are

measured at the lower value from acquisition cost and net realizable value.
The expenses, made in order to bring a product to its current condition and location, are included in the

acquisition cost as follows:

. Raw materials and materials ready for use — all supply costs, including price, duties and fees, transportation
costs, non-refundable taxes, and other costs, which contribute to bringing the materials in ready for use condition.
. Production ready for sale and work in progress - the direct cost of materials and labour, and the

corresponding part of the production indirect costs, except the administration costs, currency differences, and the
cost of borrowed financial resources. The distribution of the permanent general production expenses in the cost of
production is made on the basis of recalculated volume of production compared to a single unit produced (difficulty
coefficient).

The method of average-weighted price (cost), calculated on monthly basis, is used for the inventories usage
(sale).

The net realizable value is the approximate sale price of a given asset in the course of normal commercial
activities, less the approximately determined costs for bringing this asset in commercial condition and the
approximately determined costs for realisation.

There is a pledge on inventories of the company with balance value of BGN 750 thousand.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables (note 5) are reported in the financial statement at fair value on the basis of original invoice
(cost), less the value of the impairment for uncollectable amounts.

An approximate measurement of losses from suspicious or uncollectable receivables is made when there is
high uncertainty for the collectability of the whole or partial amount. The impairment of receivables is accounted by
the corresponding corrective account for every type of receivables under article “Depreciation and amortisation
expense” on the front side of the statement of comprehensive income.

The uncollectable receivables are recognised as expenses for the period, in which they have been
acknowledged (note 5).

There is a collateral pledge on all current, future and contingent receivables of the company, up to amount of
bank loan (contract 228/2007 and contract 007/2017), applicable to all bank accounts opened with the lending bank.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash funds in Leva (BGN) are measured at their nominal value, and those in foreign currency — at the fixing
rate of the Bulgarian National Bank on 31 December 2018. The cash funds of the company are formed by cash funds
in the company treasury and in bank accounts, respectively in Leva (BGN) and foreign currency. The cash funds in
banks are on current and deposit accounts (note 7). The company does not have any blocked cash funds.

« Cash receivables from clients and cash payables to suppliers are presented gross with VAT
included (20%});

«  Cash flows related to fixed assets are presented net, without VAT,

«  The interest rate for investment loans received are included as payment for financial operations,
while interest rate, related to operating loans, is included under operating activities.

2.14 Loans and other borrowed financial resources

All loans as well as other borrowed financial resources are initially recognised and measured at cost
(nominal value), which is accepted as fair value of what is received from the transaction, net from the direct expenses
related to those loans and borrowed resources. After initially recognised, the interest bearing loans and other
borrowed resources are then measured by amortisation value, determined by applying the method of effective
interest. The amortisation value is calculated by taking into consideration all types of fees, commissions and other
expenses, including discount or premium, associated with those loans. The profits and losses are recognised in the
comprehensive income statement as financial revenues or expenses (interest) for the period of amortisation or when
the liabilities are written off or reduced. Current liabilities are not discounted.

Interest bearing loans and other financial resources are classified as current unless the company has the
explicit right to pay off its liability in terms longer than 12 months from the statement date.

The long-term and current liabilities in Leva (BGN) are measured by the cost of their origination, and those
denominated in foreign currency — by the fixing rate of the Bulgarian National Bank as of 31 December 2018.
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2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised if legal or constructive liability is present at the best educated guess about the
possible economic benefits, which will flow when liabilities are paid off towards the date of the financial statement.

2.16 Employee benefits

Short-term income
Short term income of personnel in the form of remunerations, bonuses and social rewards (available in the

12 months after the period, in which personnel has expended work for or has fulfilled the necessary conditions) is
recognised as expense in the comprehensive income statement for the period, in which the work is expended or the
conditions for the receipt of this short-term income are met, and as a current fiability (after deduction of all paid
amounts and all applicable deductions) in the amount of the undiscounted sum. The payments due for social and
health insurance are recognised as current expenses and liabilities in undiscounted amount as well for the period of
accounting, the corresponding revenues are related to.

Refundable holidays

Towards the date of every financial statement the company makes evaluation of the expected expenses for
accumulated refundable days off, which are expected to be paid as a result of not using the right for taking days off.
The approximate estimation of the expenses for compensations and expenses for the payments for compulsory
social and health insurance, which the employer owes on this amount based on the gross remuneration for the last
month, in which the employees have worked at least 10 days, are included in the evaluation.

Other long-term income

The enterprise is obliged to pay income for the leave of these employees, who retire at Mathios AD, in
compliance with the Social Insurance Code, article 222, paragraph 3 and Collective Work Agreement. According to
these legal and corporate requirements, at the termination of work agreement of employee that have acquired the
right to pension, the company pays him/her compensation. The compensation is in the amount of four gross salaries,
in case the work experience at the company is up to 6 years, and six gross salaries in case the work experience at
the company is over ten years. Towards the date of each statement of the financial position, the management
measures the approximate amount of the potential costs, payable at the current level of remunerations.

2.17 Income taxes

In compliance with the Bulgarian legislation, the company owes corporate tax in the amount of 10% on the
taxable income. The corporate tax for the previous year has been 10% as well.

The income tax is calculated based on the result for the year, while taking into consideration deferred taxes.
Deferred taxes on income reflect the net tax effect from time differences between the balance value of assets and
liabilities for the purpose of the financial statements and the values for tax purposes. In order to determine the
amount of assets and liabilities from deferred taxes, specific tax levels, which are expected to be valid for the period
of their realisation, are applied.

Assets and liabilities on deferred taxes reflect the tax consequences from the way the company expects to
fix or restore the balance value of assets and liabilities towards the date of preparation of the statement. Assets and
liabilities are recognised no matter when the temporary difference will show back.

Deferred taxes, related to objects, reported as other components of the comprehensive income or capital
position in the statement of financial position, are also reported directly towards the corresponding component of the
comprehensive income or balance capital position.

2.18 Related parties

For the purpose of preparing the current financial statement all key management personnel and members of
the governing bodies, as well as close relatives of their families, including the entities controlled by the above mentioned
parties, are treated as related parties (note 4, 11.1 and 19).

2.19 Financial instruments

Accounting policy, applicable after 1 January 2018

Financial instrument is every contract, establishing simultaneously a financial asset in one entity and a
financial liability or equity in another entity.

2.19.1 Financial Assets

Initial recognition, classification and measurement
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At their initial recognition, financial assets are classified under the three categories, according to which they
are later measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income and at fair value through

profit and loss.
The classification of financial assets at their initial recognition depends on the characteristics of the

contracted cash flows of the corresponding financial asset or the business model of the company for its management.

The business model of managing financial assets reflects the way the company manages its financial assets
for generating cash flows. The business model defines whether the cash flows resuit from the collecting contracted
cash flows, sale of financial assets or both.

Valuation

The company initially recognises financial assets at fair value, while in case of financial assets, which are not
recognised at fair value through profit and loss, the direct costs of the trade are added. The exception are trade
receivables, which do not include significant component of financing — they are measured based on the price of trade,
defined in accordance with IFRS 15 and the issued invoice.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified under four categories:

e Debt instruments, measured at amortised cost;

e Debt instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (with re-classification in profit
and loss);

o  Equity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (without re-classification in
profit and loss);

e Financial assets (debts instruments, equity instruments and derivatives), measured at fair value through
profit and loss.

For the current period, the company classifies assets under one of these categories — financial
assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments).
This is the most significant category for the company.

The company measures financial assets at amortised cost when both of the following conditions are met:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The management has estimated the financial assets, comprising cash in banks accounts, trade receivables
and other receivables, are held by the company with to goal to collect contracted cash flows, while these cash flows
represent solely principal and interest in accordance with the business model.

The financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured based on the effective interest rate (EIR).
They are subject to impairment. The profit and loss are recognised in statement of comprehensive income (in the
profit or loss for the year), when the asset is written off, modified or impaired.

White-off

Financial assets are written off from the statement of financial position when:

¢ The rights to receiving cash flows from the asset are expired, or

e The rights to receiving cash flows from the assets are transferred or the company has taken the liability to
pay in full the cash flows received, without significant delay, to third party by agreement for transfer. In this
case, the company also recognises the corresponding liability. The transferred asset and the corresponding
liability are measured based on the rights and obligations, which the company has held.

The continued part, in the form of guaranteed on the transferred asset, is measured at the lower of: the initial
balance value of the asset or the maximum amount of the payment, which could be required for the entity to pay.

Impairment of financial assets

The company recognises corrective (provision for impairment) for expected credit loss for all debt
instruments, which are not reported at fair value through profit and loss. The expected credit loss are calculated as
difference between the contractual cash flows, due according to the terms of the contract, and all cash flows, which
the company expects to receive, discounted by the initial effective interest rate.

At each reported date, it defines whether the debt instrument is such with low credit risk, using all
reasonable and established information, which is available without making undue expenses and efforts. The company

10
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reviews the idiosyncratic credit risk of the debt instrument. In addition, it makes a judgement whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, when the payment under the contract is overdue by over 30 days.

The company regards a financial instrument to have significantly increased its credit risk when the
contractual payments are past due for more than 60 days. However, in certain cases, it may treat a financial asset as
such when internal or external information provides an indication that it is unlikely that the company will receive the
full amount of the outstanding amounts under the contract before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by it. Financial assets are derecognised when there is no reasonable expectation for the collection of cash flows
under the contract.

For the calculation of expected credit losses of trade receivables and assets under contract with clients, the
company has adopted and applies the simplified approach based on a matrix for estimating the expected credit loss
and does not follows subsequent changes in the credit risk. Under this approach, it recognises corrective (provision
for impairment) based on the expected credit losses over the whole period of the receivables at each reporting date.
The company has established and applies a provision matrix, which is based on the historical data with respect to
credit losses, corrected by forecast ratios, specific for the counterparties and the economic environment and for which
there is established correlation with the rate of credit losses.

Financial assets are derecognised when the company has no reasonable expectation of recovering the casf
flows under the contract.

Accounting policy, applicable from 1 January 2017

The company classifies its financial assets under the following categories: “loans (credits) and receivables”
and “assets held for sale”. The classification depends on the nature and the purpose of the financial assets towards
the date of their acquisition. The management determines the classification of the financial assets of the company
towards the date of their initial recognition in the statement of financial position.

The company normally recognises financial assets in the statement of financial position on “the date of
transaction” — the date, on which it has engaged to buy the respective financial assets. All financial assets are
measured by their fair value plus the direct costs of the transaction. Financial assets are written off the financial
position statement when the right for receiving cash funds from those assets has expired or the company has
transferred the essential part of the risks and benefits arising from the ownership of the asset to another entity or
person.

Loans (credits) and receivables

Loans (credits) and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or definable payments, which
are not quoted on an active market. They are measured in the financial position statement at their amortisation value
using the method of effective interest, less the impairments made. These assets are included in the group of current
assets when their maturity is up to 12 months or the usual operating cycle of the company, while the rest are included
as long-term assets.

This group of financial assets includes: loans provided, trade receivables, other receivables from
counterparties and third parties, cash funds and cash equivalents from the financial position statement. The interest
income on “credits and receivables” is recognised on the basis of effective interest, unless they are short-term
receivables less than 3 months, where the recognition of such interest is unjustified as it is not significant under the
framework of usual credit terms. It is presented in the statement of comprehensive income under “net financial
revenues/expenses”.

On the date of every financial statement, the company estimates whether there are events or conditions
providing evidence of objective proof that requires impairment of the credits and receivables.

2.19.2 Financial liabilities and instruments of the shareholders’ equity

The company classifies debt instruments and equity instruments as financial liabilities or as shareholders’
equity depending on the nature and the conditions in the contract with the respective counterparty with respect to
these instruments.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition, classification and measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, while in the case of loans and financing and trade
and other receivables, net of the direct costs related to the transaction.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below.

Financial liabilities, measured at amortised cost

1
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This category is significant for the company. After initial recognition, the company measures interest bearing
loans and financing at amortised cost by the method of the effective interest rate. Profit and loss are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income (in profit and loss for the year), when the corresponding financial liability is
derecognised, as well as when by the amortisation based on the effective interest rate.

The amortised value is estimated by taking into consideration all discounts or premiums of the acquisition,
as well as fees and costs, which are inseparable part of the effective interest rate. The amortisation is included as
“financial expense” in the statement of comprehensive income (in the profit and loss for the year).

Write-off

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is settled or terminated, or expired. When existing
financial liability is replaced by another by the same credit provider at materially different terms, or the terms of the
existing liabilities are materially changed, this exchange or modification is treated as derecognition of the initial liability
and recognition of a new one. The difference in the balance value of the financial liability, settled or transferred to
another party in cash or non-cash assets is recognised in the profit and loss for the year,

Accounting policy, applicable from 1 January 2017

Financial liabilities include debt (credits), liabilities towards suppliers and other counterparties. Initially they
are recognised in the statement of financial position at fair value, net of the direct costs of the transaction, and next —
at the amortisation value using the effective interest method.

2.20 Conditional assets and liabilities

Conditional assets and liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed, unless
the possibility of outgoing and incoming cash flows as well as the related economic benefits are not too far ahead in
time.

2.21 Revenues

Accounting policy, applicable from 1 January 2018

Revenue recognition under client contracts

The general revenues of the company are from the sale of own production. The revenue is recognised when
the control over the agreed in the client contract goods and/or services is transferred to the client. The control is
transferred to the client when the obligations under the contract are met by transferring the agreed goods and/or
services.

Measurement of customer contracts

A contract with customer is present only when it has commercial substance and motive, parties have
approved it (in writing, orally or in accordance with other customary business practices) and are committed to perform
their respective obligations, and it is probable the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled.

A contract, which does not meet one of the aforementioned criteria, is subject to a reassessment each
reporting period. Considerations, received under such contract, are recognised as liability (liability under contract) in
the statement of financial position, while all other criteria for recognition of customer contract are not met, respectively
the company fulfils its obligations and receives all or almost all the consideration (which is not subject to refund)
and/or the contract is terminated and the consideration received is non-refundable.

In the initial recognition of the customer contracts, the company makes additional analysis and assessment
whether two or more contracts shall be considered in their combination and be reported as one, respectively whether
the agreed goods and/or services in each separate and/or combined contract shall be reported as one and/or more
obligations for fulfilment. Every promise for transfer of goods and/or services, which are separable (by themselves in
the context of the contract) are reported as one obligation for fulfilment.

The company recognises revenue for each separate obligation for fulfiiment at individual customer level,
while the terms and conditions are analysed for each contract.

When measuring the collectability, all relevant facts and conditions under the transaction are taken into
consideration, including past experience, general business practices, published guidelines and announcements made
by the company, guarantees and ability for settiement.

Measurement of revenue from customer contracts
The revenue is measured based on the defined for each contract price.
The price of the transaction is the amount of the consideration, which the company expects to have the right

to receive, except for the amounts, collected on behalf of third parties. In the process of setting the transaction price,
the company takes into consideration the terms of the contract and its common commercial practices.

12



MATHIOS AD

Notes to financial statements 2018

Obligations for fulfilment under customer contracts

The revenue, generated by the company, is mainly from sale of own production. The company has reached
conclusion that it acts as principal in its dealings with customers for the sale of goods/production, since the company
controls the goods and/or services before transferring them to the customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods

The company sells own production and others. In the sale, the control of the goods is transferred to the
customer at a specific point of time at specified location and the customer can dispose with it by managing its use
and receive all related benefits.

Revenue from the sale of services

The services, provided by the company, include episodic services and others. The control on the services is
transferred in the period of time during their execution.

Price of transaction and payment terms

The price of the transaction generally includes contracted/fixed sale price, in accordance with general or
customer-specific price list.

Variable consideration

Variable consideration is included in the price only to the extent where it is highly probable that there will not
be significant correction in the cumulative revenue recognised.

Revenues in the company are recognised on the basis of the accounting principle and up to the extent, to
which the commercial benefits are acquired by the company and the revenues could be reliably estimated (note 12).

Revenues from sale of production, goods and materials are recognised when all significant risks and
rewards of the ownership are transferred to the buyer, including when all additional conditions for their acceptance by
the client are taken into consideration. The recognition is analogical for the sale of other tangible assets.

Revenues from providing services are recognised, taking into account the level of completion of the deal
towards the date of the statement of financial position, in case the level of completion could be reliably measured. All
expenses made on the deal and the costs needed for its conclusion are recognised by taking into consideration all
additional conditions for the acceptance of the service by the client.

Revenues are measured on the basis of fair value of the goods and services sold, net of indirect taxes
(excise duty and value added tax), provided discounts and rebates.

Financial revenues are included in the comprehensive income statement when they occur and they consist
of interest revenues on loans provided and other receivables or deposits with investment purpose.

They are presented net, together with the financial expenses on the front side of the statement of
comprehensive income. The interest revenue is recognised as it is accounted and included in the current profits and
losses proportionally in time during the existence of the corresponding interest bearing asset, based on the effective
interest method.

The differences from change in currency rates related to cash funds, trade receivables and payables,
denominated in foreign currency, are included in the statement of comprehensive income when they occur as they
are also represented net towards “financial revenues/expenses”.

2,22 Expenses

Expenses in the company are recognised at the moment of their occurrence on the basis of accounting and
correspondence, but to the extent that the latter does not lead to recognition of reported objects as assets and
liabilities (Notes 13-17).

Expenses for future periods are postponed for recognition as current expenses for the period, which the
corresponding contracts are executed in.

Financial revenues and expenses are included in the comprehensive income statement when they occur.
They are presented net and include: interest revenues and expenses related to provided or received loans, as well as
fees and other indirect costs of credits, bank guarantees, and currency rate differences on loans in foreign currency.
They are presented net, together with the financial expenses on the front side of the statement of comprehensive
income.

2.23 Financial risk management

The company is exposed to different types of risks in its operating activities, namely:

Credit risk - the risk the opposite side does not pay its liabilities is supervised by the company using internal
rules of control of revenues and expenses, explicit clauses for payment terms and penalties in the contracts with

counterparties, as well as collaterals, when appropriate.

13



MATHIOS AD

Notes to financial statements 2018

After analyses at the end of every reporting period, the company applies policy of 100% impairment for
doubtful receivables, in case at least one year has passed since their due date.

Liquidity risk - arises from time differences in the contracted and actual maturities of the cash assets and
liabilities. The management maintains enough cash resources in order to support constant liquidity.

Currency risk - arises from transactions in foreign currency made by the company in the course of its
business operations (note 16).

Interest risk — arises from the possible increase in interest rates of banks and therefore the interest on
borrowed capital by the company, thus leading to increase in the interest expenses.

Statement of financial position
3. Non-current assets

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Assets
2017, s : . ; under
o Lands Buildings Machines Equipment Vehicles Other LTA TOTAL
BGN'000 g ek constructi
Gross carrying amount, Jan.01, 2017 149 863 1103 1182 289 282 4 3872
Accumulated depreciation, Jan.01,2017 0 (229) (1 050) (287) (218) (227) 0 (2011)
Balance at January 01,2017 149 634 53 895 71 55 4 1861
Additions 8 30 1 33 72
Disposals (41) 41
Current year depreciation (34) (24) (47) (18) (21) (144)
Eliminated depreciation on disposals of assets s 1 L 41
Balance at December 31,2017 149 600 37 878 53 35 37 1789
Assets
2018 — . . . d
e lands  Buildings Machines Equipment Vehicles Other LTA  Ynder TOTAL
BGN'000 g and constructi
B A
Gross carrying amount, Jan.01, 2018 149 863 1111 1212 248 283 37 3903
Accumulated depreciation, Jan.01,2018 0 (263) (1074) (334) (195) (248) 0 (2 114)
Balance at January 01,2018 149 600 37 878 53 35 37 1789
Additions 11 49 41 188 289
Disposals (13) (13)
Current year depreciation (34) (23) (50) (17) (12) (138)
Eliminated depreciation on disposals of assets = ~ 0
Balance at December 31,2018 149 566 25 877 38 64 212 1929
Gross carrying amount, Dec.31, 2018 149 863 1122 1281 248 324 212 4179
Accumulated depreciation, Dec.31,2018 0 (297) g _(1_ 087) (384) (212) (260) 0 (2 2_502
Balance at December 31,2018 149 566 25 877 36 64 212 1929

A commission of technical experts from the company has performed an overview of the tangible assets in order
to find whether there are conditions present for impairments in compliance with the requirements and the rules of IAS 36
Impairment of Assets. Based on this overview, the management has established there are no such indications for
impairment as of 31 December 2018.
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3.2 Intangible assets

Assets
2017, Rights if?tg):g; under oty
BGN'000 Assels constructi

-— on —-——
Gross carrying amount, Jan.01, 2017 18 15 0 33
Accumulated depreciation, Jan.01, 2017 (7) ___(11) 0 (18)
Balance at January 01,2017 1" 4 0 15
Additions 0
Disposals o]
Current year depreciation (3) (2) (5)
Eliminated depreciation on disposals of assets _ 0
Balance at December 31,2017 ] 2 0 10

Assets
2018, Rights ir?ltah:gr. under  rotal
BGN'000 Assets constructi
_____on

Gross carrying amount, Jan.01, 2018 18 15 0 33
Accumulated depreciation, Jan.01, 2018 (10) (13) 0 (23)
Balance at January 01,2018 8 2 0 10
Additions 4 4
Disposals 0
Current year depreciation (3) (1) (4)
Eliminated depreciation on disposals of assets e 0
Balance at December 31,2018 9 1 0 10
Gross carrying amount, Dec.31, 2018 22 15 0 37
Accumulated depreciation, Dec.31, 2018 (13) ___(14) 0 (27)
Balance at December 31,2018 9 1 0 10

The management has established there are no conditions for impairment of the company’s intangible assets.

4. Receivables from related parties

At the reporting period, the Company has receivables from related party IKM COMPANY LTD as follows:

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

IKM COMPANY LTD 2 24
Total receivables from related parties 2 24

They are in BGN, interest-free, and are solely from trading deals on sales of products, goods and services.
The company has set a standard credit period of 30 days for receivables from related parties.

5. Trade and other receivables, net

Trade receivables are from trade contractors (clients and suppliers, receivables under provided guarantees
for rented assets, and deferred expenses) and tax refunds.



Receivables from trade contractors
Pending and awarded claims
Tax refunds

TOTAL
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2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

82 169

18 14

— 5 _45
156 228

5.1 As of 31 December, the enterprise has the following receivables from trade contractors:

Receivables from clients
Advance payments ESF grants
Deposits to contractors
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

24 20

34 118

15 9

- 9o 2
82 169

The company applies flexible policy for its trade receivables. Immediate payment policy is adopted for large
part of the clients, while for regular clients the credit period is between 30 and 60 days, subject to individual

agreement.

With the adoption of IFRS 9 from 1

January 2018, the company applies the simplified approach for

impairment of receivables from customers. The management has developed and applies the model of provision
matrix for expected credit loss from customers. There is no significant effect for the company from the application of
IFRS 9, both at 01.01.2018 and at 31.12.2018. In particular, the effect of the new provision matrix model of

receivables from customers is presented in note 21.

As of 31 December trade receivables, are in the amount of BGN 24 thousand with the following structure:

les than 30 days
from 30 to 60 days
from 61 to 90 days
from 91 to 120 days
More than 120 days
TOTAL

2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
3 1

9 2

3 14

12 3

24 20

As of 31 December, there are no overdue receivables, which are not impaired. The written-off overdue
receivables are in amount of 1 thousand BGN (reported in “Depreciation and amortisation expense” in SCI).
The deposits provided in the amount of BGN 15 thousand are for rented assets and payment guarantees

for regular supplies.

Expenses for future periods refer to bank fees — BGN 1 thousand, insurances — BGN 6 thousand, and

subscriptions — BGN 2 thousand.

5.2 The tax refunds are from value added tax for December 2018.

VAT to collect
TOTAL

2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
56 45

56 45

The legal receivables are for fees and compensations for immaterial damages on labour case with
preliminary execution allowed. At the date of the financial statements, the corresponding court papers for determining
the amount of the assigned to the company receivables are expected.
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6. Inventories

The management maintains a level of raw materials and spare parts in a warehouse that ensures the normal
production cycle.

At the date of the financial statement, a commission of experts from the company makes an overview of the
raw materials available, as follows:
. Overview of the balance value of raw materials and comparison to the net realisable value, in order to
establish whether it is necessary to impair these raw materials in the financial statement. As a result of the overview,
it is established an impairment in amount of 57 thousand BGN is necessary for the ready production (reported in
“Depreciation and amortisation expense” in SCI). For the other inventories is established there is no need for
impairment to the net realisable value.
. Overview of the raw materials with respect to obsolescence and working capability. The company maintains
inventory of materials and specific spare parts for front and side port equipment. The inspection shows there are no
conditions for write-offs or impairment of obsolete inventories.

2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
Main and supplement materials 831 817
Production 818 726
Goods 38 34
TOTAL 1687 1677

The major part of inventories comprises materials (main and packaging) for the production and matrices for
moulding the products.

7. Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents available at 31 December 2018, are in bank current accounts in BGN and
EUR and they are not interest bearing.

2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
in BGN 15 68
In foreign currency 36 31
TOTAL 51 99

8. Equity

Mathios AD is registered in the Trade Register as a joint stock company. As of 31 December 2018, the
issued equity is fully deposited in the amount of BGN 400 000 and equal to 400 000 shares with nominal value of
BGN 1 each.

Shareholders are as follows:

1. Mathios Refractories S.A., Greece — 99,9975 % of capital (399 990 shares)
2. Individuals — 0,0025 % of capital (10 shares)
9. Reserves
2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
Legal reserves 40 40
TOTAL 40 40
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10. Retained earnings

10.1 Retained earnings from previous periods

2018 2017
_____ _ BGNoOO  BGN000
Retained earnings for 2009 153 153
Retained earnings for 2010 2456 2456
Uncovered loses 2011 (318) (318)
Uncovered loses 2016 (586) (586)
Uncovered loses 2017 g ~ (555) ] -
Total retained earnings from previous periods 1150 1705
10.2 Retained earnings for the current period
2018 2017
_________ BGN'000 BGN'000
Retained earnings for the current period _ (356) o (555)
TOTAL 794 1150

11. Current liabilities
11.1 Liabilities to related parties

There are related party liabilities only to Mathios Refractories A.D. They are in BGN, interest free, and are
solely from commercial deals on purchases of production materials, moulds, goods, services and rents of production
equipment.

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Mathios Refractories 1799 1088
TOTAL 1799 1088

11.2 Liabilities to financial companies

Credit amount — EUR 115 500.

Purpose — operating resources;

Interest — three months euribor + 5%;

Principal — equal monthly instaiments according to paymerit schedule;

Collateral — corporate guarantee, provided by the mother-company, and collateral pledge on receivables and
inventories (note 2.11 and 2.12),

Maturity — 31.05.2019

Credit amount — BGN 152 555.

Purpose - operating resources;

Interest — reference rate + 5%;

Principal — equal monthly instalments according to payment schedule;

Collateral — corporate guarantee, provided by the mother-company, and collateral pledge on receivables and
inventories (note 2.11 and 2.12),

Maturity — 31.05.2019

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Credit for operating resources EUR 163 257
Credit for operating resources BGN - 120
TOTAL 163 377



Reconcllation of changes In llabllitles from financlal

operations
BGN'000

Liabilities to financial companies

Total llabllities from flnanclal operations

Reconcllatlon of changes In llabllitles from flnanclal

operations
BGN'000

Liabilities to financial companies

Total llabllitles from financlal operations

11.3 Trade and other liabilities

Liabilities to suppliers
Advances from clients
Tax payables

Other current liabilities

EU grants (advance payments)

TOTAL

As of 31 December the company has liabilities to the following suppliers of raw materials, transportation

services, and others:

Supplier
DALKAFIKI IOAN MARIA
MERIDIAN
ROKOS G
IDEAL SANDART
SIKA BULGARIA
PALADIUM
BELPACK
STROICEM
KDK TERM
CHEZ BULGARIA
TOPLIVO GAS
OTHERS
TOTAL
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01.01 2018 Changes in cash Changes of non- 31122018
flows from flinancial monetary nature
operallons
351 26 377
351 26 0 377
01/01/2018 Changes in cash Changes of non- 31/12/2018
flows from financial monelary nalure
operalions
377 (214) 163
377 (214) 0 163
2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
371 435
4 -
17 17
2 5
153 75
547 532

Tax payables are for tax on income, paid to individuals in 2018.

Personnel incomes tax

TOTAL

2018
Supply type BGN'000
materials purchase 31
fixed assets 6
materials purchase 21
materials purchase 6
materials purchase 12
work safety eu grants .
materials purchase 133
materials purchase 89
servises 30
elecricity 11
gas production 8
24
371

2018

BGN'000

17

17

2017

BGN'000

435

2017
BGN'000
17

17

Other payables are: payables for deliveries — BGN 1 thousand and insurances payables — BGN 1 thousand.



MATHIOS AD

Notes to financial statements 2018

11.4 Liabilities to personnel

The following items are reported under the article “Liabilities to personnel”:

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Wages and salaries 56 103
Refundable holidays 17 24
Social insurance payables 31 28
TOTAL 104 155

At the date of the statement of financial position, the management of the company has determined the
potential costs, payable upon release of the staff due to retirement over the next five years: BGN 0 thousand (2017:
BGN 0 thousand). The calculation of the amount of these liabilities assumes participation of qualified actuaries in
order to determine their present value at the reporting date. At present, the company does not use actuarial services,
thus the estimation of the company’s management for establishing the value of potential expense could not be
defined as reliable. In this respect, provisions for retirement payments are not recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Statement of comprehensive income
12. Revenue
12.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

In the statement of comprehensive income for 2018, the revenue from operations of the company is
presented as follows:

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Revenue from sale of production 3540 3707
Revenue from sale of goods 524 302
Revenue from rendering of services 152 195
TOTAL 4216 4204

In 2017, revenue is recognised under IAS 18 Revenue, while in 2018 — under IFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers — note 2.3.

Moment in time for recognition of revenue

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Goods, transferred at specifed moment of time 4064 4009

Services, transferred over time 152 195

TOTAL 4216 4204
Balance under contracts

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Trade receivebles from customers 24 20

Trade receivables from related parties 2 24

TOTAL 26 44
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12.2 Other gains/(losses), net

2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
Gain/(loss) on a disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) ) 8
EU funds&Government grants received for staff safety&training 133 i
TOTAL 133 8
The company has made the following operating expenses for 2018:
13. Expense for raw materials and consumables
2018 2017
BNG'000 BNG'000
Main materials (873) (1 048)
Supplement materials and spare parts (699) (685)
Materials by ESF grant (106) -
TOTAL (1678) (1733)
14. Administrative and selling expenses
2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
Advertising,promotions, consulting, fees (40) (59)
Electicity, gas, water (167) (151)
Telecommunications and couriers (5) (7)
Rents (656) (750)
Trips and car expenses (37) (40)
Office supplies (3) (4}
Transport and other sales expenses (141) (180)
Other administrative expenses (79) (115)
TOTAL (1128) (1 306)

15. Employee benefits expense

The expenses for wages and salaries of employees also include the salaries of the management personnel,
which are subject to analysis in 19.3.

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Expenses for wages and salaries (1172) (1125)
Expenses for social insurance (189) (159)
Expenses for refundable holidays (17) (24)
TOTAL (1378) (1 308)

The number of employees towards 31 December under labour agreements is 77, while it was 78 for 2017
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16. Finance costs

Expense for interests
Bank fees and commissions
Net income/loss from foreign currency deals

Net finance costs

17. Tax expense

Notes

MATHIOS AD

to financial statements 2018

2018
BGN'000

)
(10)

©®
(33)

2017
BGN'000

(20)

9
(4
(33)

The company completes 2018 with negative financial result before taxes — BGN (353) thousand. After
transforming the financial result for tax purposes, the company has a nil result for taxation.

The main components of the expense on income tax are:

Temporary tax differences
TOTAL

2018
BGN'000

©)
)

The relationship between tax and accounting profit for the period is as follows:

Profit/loss before tax
Temporary tax difference

Profit after tax

2018
BGN'000

(353)
(3)
(356)

2017
 BGN'000
6.

6

2017
BGN'000

(661)
6
(555)

After estimating the net effect from the new temporary tax differences for 2018 and the opposite effect of the
temporary tax differences from previous periods the company declares no change in deferred tax expenses for the

current year.,

Compensatio Physical
Depreciation n for pensions persons
and holidays income
BGN'000
January 01, 2017 2 2 2
Accounted as revenue/expense in the statement of comprehensive income
In the profit for the year 5
In the other comprehensive income
December 31, 2017 2 2 7
Accounted as revenue/expense in the statement of comprehensive income
In the profit for the year (6)
In the other comprehensive income
December 31, 2018 2 2 1

18. Yield per share

18.1 Earnings per share

Low Bad
capitalisation  receivables

1 2
™
1 1
M
1 0

Assets
impairments

TOTAL

Earnings per share are calculated as the net income available to shareholders is divided by the average

number of shares outstanding during the year.

The average number of shares outstanding, used for estimating the earnings per share, as well as the net

income available to shareholders, are as follows:
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2018 2017

BGN BGN

Net income (loss), available to shareholders (355 327) (555 238)
Average number of shares 400 000 400 000
Earnings per share (BGN for share) ((ﬁ) (1.39)

18.2 Net value per share

The net value per share is calculated by dividing the shareholders™ equity by the weight average number of

shares.
2018 2017
Shareholders equity, thousands BGN 1234 1590
Average number of shares 400 000 400 000
Net value per share, BGN 3.09 3.98

19. Related parties

19.1 Relation type

Mathios Refractories S.A., Greece — mother-company.

IKM Company LTD — entity, controlled by key management personnel.

Mathios GmbH, Germany — entity, controlled by the majority shareholder of the equity.

IDEAL REFRACTORIES SA, Greece - entity, controlled by the majority shareholder of the equity
BAU MARKET SA, Greece - entity, controlled by the majority shareholder of the equity

19.2 Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are not subject to specific terms and conditions.

Transactions type 2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Mother-company sale of production 3224 3493
Mother-company sale of goods and materials 119 125
Mother-company sale of services 140 180
Mother-company purchase of assets 20 5
Mother-company purchase of materials 299 359
Mother-company purchase of goods 316 128
Mother-company purchase of services 620 756
Controlled company sale of production 114 27
Controlled company sale of goods - 1
Controlled company sale of services 2 2

The liabilities to related parties at the date of the financial statement are towards Mathios Refractories S.A,,
while the receivables from related parties are from IKM Company LTD, as follows:

2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
Receivables from related parties 2 24
Liabilities to related parties 1799 1088
19.3 Transactions with key management personnel
2018 2017
BGN'000 BGN'000
Salaries (249) (335)
Social insurances (12) (13)
Total transactions with key management peronnel (261) (348)
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20. Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 (2014) reviews classification, valuation and writing-off of financial assets and financial liabilities. It
introduces new rules for reporting of hedging and a new model for impairment of financial assets. It replaces entirely
IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and valuation.

Classification
IFRS 9 (2014) introduces 3 primary categories for classification of financial assets: valued at amortisation
cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income and at fair value through profit and loss.
The company has classified its financial assets and liabilities in compliance with the new standard from
01.01.2018.
The financial assets, held by the company, for which there are no significant effects, include:
e Trade and other receivables, currently classified as “Credits and receivables”, are measured at
amortised cost, which correspond to the conditions for classification at amortised cost, in
compliance with IFRS 9, with balance value of BGN 158 thousand.

In this respect, the requirements of the new IFRS 9 do not provide significant effect on the classification and
measurement of the company's financial assets.

There are no effects for financial reporting of financial liabilities of the company, since the new requirements
refer only to the financial reporting of financial liabilities, defined at fair value through profit and loss, while it does not
have such liabilities. The rules for derecognising liabilities are transferred from IAS 39 Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement and are not amended.

% Classification of financial assets at the date of initial application of IFRS 9

Initial classification New classification accrding Balance value New balance value
Financial assets according to IAS 39 to IFRS 9 according to IAS 39 according lo IFRSS
BGN'000
. j i Vaiued at rtisati t
. Trade and other receivables Credits and receivables alued at amortisation cos 51 51
» Receivables from related . ) _
. Credits and receivables  Valued at amortisation cost 24 24
parties
) Credits and receivables  Valued at amortisalion cost 99 99
+ Cash and cash equivalents
174 174

Total financial assets:

% Reconciliation of balance values of financial assets according under IAS 39 with balance values
under IFRS 9 at the date of transition to IFRS 9

Financial assets = 2?3 f""'z"‘gg‘“:;’a'”e Reclassification 'FRSQ? . 1”;':28‘: ga'“e
BGN'000
Amortisation cost
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning balance: 99 99
Revaluation - -
Ending balance: 99 99
Receivables from related parties:
Beginning balance: 24 - 24
Revaluation - - -
Ending balance: 24 - 24
Trade and other receivables
Beginning balance: 51 51
Revaluation - -
Ending balance: 51 51
Total valued at amortisation cost: 174 174
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The Company does not report effect from transition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 in revaluation reserves at fair
value and in the balance of retained earnings.

There are no other standards, which are not yet in force and which are expected to provide significant
impact on the Company during the current or future reporting periods and on planned future operations.

21. Financial risk management

Structure of the financial assets and liabilities at 31 December by category:

Credits and Total

Financial assets, December 31, 2018 receivables BGN'000
BGN'000

Trade receivables and others 57 57

Trade receivables from related parties 2 2

Cash and cash equivalents 51 51

TOTAL 110 110

Other financial Total

Financial liabilities, December 31, 2018 liabilities BGN'Ooao
BGN'000

Bank loans 163 163

Trade liabilities towards linked persons 1799 1799

Trade liabilities and others 526 526

TOTAL 2488 2488

Credits and Total

Financial assets, December 31, 2017 receivables BGN'000
BGN'000

Trade receivables and others 51 51

Trade receivables from related parties 24 24

Cash and cash equivalents 99 99

TOTAL 174 174

Other financial Total

Financial liabilities, December 31, 2017 liabilities BGN,‘(’)O""O
BGN'000

Bank loans 377 377

Trade liabilities to related parties 1088 1088

Trade liabilities and others 515 515

TOTAL 1980 1980

During its business operations, the company could be exposed to different types of financial risks, most
important of which are: market risk (including currency risk, risk of fair value change, and price risk), credit risk,
liquidity risk and risk from interest-related cash flows. The general risk management is focused on the forecasted
results from certain areas of the financial markets for achieving minimum negative effects, which could reflect on the
financial results. Financial risks are currently identified, measured and watched closely with the help of different
control mechanisms, so that adequate prices are determined for the products/services of the company and for the
attracted landed capital. This also helps to evaluate adequately the market conditions, the investments made by the
company, as well as the forms of keeping certain liquidity levels, without allowing unnecessary concentration of a
given risk.

Risk management is performed currently under the direct control of the executive director, and the financial
experts of the company in accordance with the policy, defined by the Board of Directors, which has developed the
main guidelines for the general risk management. Based on those guidelines are developed specific procedures for
managing the different types of risk like currency risk, interest-related risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, as well
as for the use of derivative and non-derivative (mainly) instruments.
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The different types of risk, to which the company is exposed in its business operations, as well as the
adopted approach for managing those risks, are described below:

Market risk
Currency risk

The company makes its trades on the internal and external markets, but is not exposed to considerable
currency risk, because all of its operations and trades are in BGN or EUR, which are exchanged at a fixed rate, set by
the Bulgarian National Bank by law.

The data from the table below shows the structure of the financial assets and liabilities under types of
currency:

. . in EUR in BGN Total
Financial assets, December 31, 2018 EUR'G00 BGN'000 BGN'000
Trade receivables and other 7 50 57
Trade receivables from related parties 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents 36 - 15 51
TOTAL 43 67 110

. T in EUR in BGN Total
Financial liabilities, December 31, 2018 EUR'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Bank loans 163 163
Trade liabilities to related parties 1799 1799
Trade liabilities and others 51 475 526
TOTAL 2013 475 2488

. R in EUR in BGN Total

Financial assets, December 31, 2017 EUR'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Trade receivables and other 51 51

Trade receivables from related persons 24 24

Cash and cash equivalents 31 68 99

TOTAL 31 143 174

. PP in EUR in BGN Total

Financial liabilities, December 31, 2017 EUR'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Bank loans 257 120 377

Trade liabilities to related parties 1088 1088

Trade liabilities and others 36 479 515

TOTAL 1381 599 1980

Price risk

The management succeeds in minimizing price risk in regard to raw materials by keeping alternative
sources of supply for large part of them. Still, there is a risk of price increase for small part of the raw materials,
because they have specific production that does not have adequate substitutes. Minimizing price risk of negative
changes in prices of goods and services, subject to commercial operations, is achieved by periodic analysis and
negotiation of contracted relations as well as actualising the prices towards the market changes.

The company does not keep shares or other securities, which are subject to trading, and it does not have

practice to trade with financial instruments, respectively it is not exposed to risks of negative changes in financial
markets.
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Credit risk

The financial assets of the company are concentrated in two groups: cash (in cash and in bank accounts)
and receivables from clients.

Credit risk mainly represents the risk that clients of the company are not able to fully pay and in the usually
defined terms the amounts due on trade receivables.

The company does not have significant concentration of credit risk. Its policy is to negotiate credit periods
over 30 days only to clients, who have long enough trade history with the company. For all other clients, payments on
sales are made mostly through bank wire transfers or in cash at the moment of the sale.

The collectability and the concentration of the receivables are watched currently in accordance with the
established company policy. Therefore, the accounting department presents a weekly report to the management
about the sales made, payments received, and unsettled invoices with upcoming maturity dates.

Cash funds of the company and the payment operations are concentrated in one bank, which increases the
risk for cash and cash equivalents.

The company has developed a model for expected credit losses, in accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 9. Based on the model, it estimates a provision for its trade and other current receivables, disclosed in Provision
matrix below, which includes:

a) Grouping clients and counterparties of the Company under geographical factors and under similar
business and other characteristics and credit risk.

b) Provision matrix, based on historic data for percentage of default/overdue on obligations over time
frame periods, corrected with additional assumptions and estimates, focused on possible changes in
these levels, based on macro-economic or industry specific factors. The management judgment shows
the financial component in these receivables is not significant,

at 01.01.2018

Receivable nominal Expected credit loss

Maturity B‘éﬂ%%o Rate of credit loss BGN'000

Current 3 0.95% 0.03

Overdue 1-30 days - 0.00% :

Overdue 31-60 days 24 0.00%

Overdue 61-90 days - 0.00%

Overdue 91-120 days 17 0.00%

Overdue 120 days 006 6667% ... .. .. 0.04
45 0.07

at 31.12.2018

Receivable nominal Expected credit loss

Maturity value Rate of credit loss

BGN'000 BGN'000

Current 3 0.95% 0.03
Overdue 1-30 days - 0.00% -
Overdue 31-60 days 11 0.00%
Overdue 61-90 days - 0.00%
Overdue 91-120 days 12 0.00%
Overdue 120 days 1 66.67% 0.75

27 0.78

The Company has adopted a policy for maintaining and management cash and cash equivalents in financial
institutions in Bulgaria with good reputation and high credit rating. Based on the currently performed preliminary
evaluation, the Company does not expect provisioning a significant amount for the loss correction of cash and cash
equivalents.
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The liquidity risk refers to the inability of the company to meet all of its liabilities according to their maturity. it
carries conservative policy regarding liquidity, through which it constantly maintains optimal liquidity reserve of cash
funds and good capability of financing its commercial operations. The company uses borrowed credit resources as

well.

The accounting department informs the management on monthly basis about new liabilities and follows the
maturity dates of payments, analyses factual and forecasted cash flows by period, maintains balance between the

maturity frames of assets and liabilities.

Maturity analysis

Below are presented financial non-derivative assets and liabilities of the company at the date of the
statement of financial position, grouped under remaining maturity, determined against the stipulated maturity and
cash flows. The table is prepared based on not discounted cash flows and the earliest date, on which the receivable,
respectively the payable has become due. The amounts include principles and interests.

Financial assets, December 31, 2018

Trade receivables and others
Trade receivables from related parties
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL

Financial liabilities, December 31, 2018

Bank loans
Trade liabilities to related parties
Trade liabilities and others

TOTAL

Financial assets, December 31, 2017

Trade receivables and others
Trade receivables from related parties
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL

Financial liabilities, December 31, 2017

Bank loans
Trade liabilities to related parties
Trade liabilities and others

TOTAL

Up to 1 mth
BGN'000

42

2

44

Up to 1 mth
BGN'000

362

362

Up to 1 mth
BGN'000
28

24

52

Up to 1 mth
BGN'000
403

403

1-3mths 3-12mtns APOVe 12
mths
BGN'000  BGN'000  BGN'000
0 0 0
1-3mths 3-12mths "POve 12
mths
BGN'000  BGN'O00  BGN'000
163
164
164 163 0
1-3mths 3-12mths APOVe 12
mths
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
0 0 0
1-3mths 3-12mths APOVe 12
mths
BGN'000  BGN'000  BGN'00C
377
37 75
37 452 0

Without
maturity
BGN'000

15

51

66

Without
maturity
BGN'000

1799

1799

Without
maturity
BGN'000

23

99
122

Without
maturity
BGN'000

1088

1088

Total
BGN'0OD
57

2

51

110

Total

BGN'000
163

1799
526

2488

Total

BGN'000
51

24
99

174

Total

BGN'000
377

1088
515

1980
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Risk of interest bearing cash flows

The company does not have considerable concentration of interest bearing assets, except the free cash
funds on current and deposit bank accounts, so that the revenues and the incoming operating cash flows are in large

part independent of the market interest levels.
The outgoing cash flows for 2018 are exposed to interest risk of using a bank loan in Euro with variable

interest rate, based on the interbank interest rates plus premium.
For the rest of financial liabilities, the company is not exposed to interest risk as they usually are interest-free

commercial payables.

With variable With fixed
December 31, 2018 Interest-free interest interest Total
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Financial assets 110 110
Financial liabilities 2325 163 2488

The funds on current accounts accumulate interest rates according to the tariffs of the respective banks,
which are kept relatively constant for longer period of time.

The management of the company follows and analyses its exposition against the changes in interest levels.
Different scenarios are simulated, including refinancing, renewing of existing positions and alternative financing.

Estimations are made only for significant interest bearing positions.
The interest sensitivity towards 31 December 2018, against changes in interest rate is as follows: In case

the interest rate in BGN increases with 1% (100 basis points) and the influence of all other variables is ignored, the
annual profit after taxation, respectively the equity, would be lower with 2 thousand Leva (BGN); in case of the
opposite change, decrease of 1% (100 basis points), the effect on the profit, respectively the equity, would be
increase with the same amount.

The financial assets and liabilities of the company at 31 December 2017, are as shown in the table:

With variable With fixed

December 31, 2017 Interest-free interest Interest Total

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Financial assets 174 174
Financial liabilities 1603 377 1980

The fair value concept presumes realization of the financial instruments through sales, based on the
position, assumptions and judgments of independent market participants, to a basic or most advantageous for an
asset or liability market. For its financial assets and liabilities, the company accept as a basic market the direct
transactions between parties. Especially for the trade receivables and payables, loans and bank deposits, it expects
to realize these financial assets and liabilities or through their total refund or respectively by repayment in time.
Therefore, they are presented at their amortized cost.

Also, most of the financial assets and liabilities are either short-term (bank deposits, trade receivables and
payables, short-term loans) or are presented in the statement of financial position at market value (investments in
securities) and their fair value approximates their carrying value.

The Company's management believes that under the circumstances presented in the statement of financial
position estimates of the financial assets and liabilities are as reliable, adequate and reliable for the purposes of
financial reporting.

No transfers made between level 1, 2 and 3.

22. Capital risk management

The company manages capital risk in order to support its functioning as operating company, which provides
the respective return on the invested funds by the shareholders, commercial benefits to other interested parties and
participants in its business, as well as to support optimal capital structure in order to reduce expenses for the capital.

The company follows closely the structure of capital based on the debt ratio. It is measurement of a
company's financial leverage, calculated as the company's debt divided by its total capital. The net debt capital is
defined as difference between all debt (current and noncurrent) as it is shown the financial positions statement and
the cash and cash equivalents. The total capital equals the shareholders’ equity plus the debt capital.
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The table below presents the debt ratios based on the capital structure as of 31 December:

2018 2017

BGN'000 BGN'000

Total debt, incl. 2613 2152
Bank loans 163 377
Payables towards related parties 1799 1088
Cash and cash equivalents (51) (99)
Net debt 2 562 2053
Total shareholders' equity 1234 1590
Total capital 3796 3643
Debt ratio 0.67 0.56

23. Going concern

The majority shareholder of Mathios AD declares the operations of the Company are entirely in compliance
with and subject to the execution of the adopted long-term Program for development of the Group Mathios
Refractories S.A. and to adopted Business plan for 2019. In this respect, despite the worsening financial ratios, like
reported loss of BGN 356 thousand for 2018 and a loss of BGN 555 thousand for 2017, it does not have plans for
limiting operations of the Company or laying off employees.

The shareholders of the Group Mathios Refractories also declare their willingness to provide financial
support to the company, in case it is needed.
24. Events after the statement of financial position date

There are no events occurring after the statement of financial position date.

20 February 2019 7
Issuedby .
, ;ﬁ/’ /
(Kati4 Basheva)
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Jmue X Kars TPy 08O 0BaMranonHo, B 1.4, CLC
Kagpunosa . | § 7408128314 _ng'E CHAPYNHHK, YIPAKHSBALL JINUCT
Bawesa ‘, B TPYAL |

_921 Haumenosanwve 2_2 Em( 110 3TP/EUMK o BYJICTAT

https://inetdec.nra.bg/pls/pub/DEC2009.IPUBATDEC.viewDocument?pdoc_id=8420... 11/04/2019
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Yact H - UaeHTHPUNKALMOHHU AAHHH 32 JAHBYHO 3AABJIKEHOTO JIHLE

9. Jlannm 30 CHCTABHTENS B TOAMBNNHS GHUHANCOB 0THeT

9.2, Cugroson
HPEAHPHITHE

10, JaHHM 32 AaHBYHO 32ABJIKEHOTO JIHLE, 32 KOETO ce N0AABA AeKAAPALUMNATA chrnacHo wi.117 oT 3KTIO

Haumenosanrue | |
_El/ll( no 3TP/EMK no BYJICTAT

11. laHHU 3a MPeACTABAABALLMSA NpPe3 MOC/IeAHUS AaHbYeH mepuoa no 4. 161 or 3Kﬂ0 pea |
(1aHHK 32 THLETO, KOETO € 3aAbJIKEHO 1A AeKJIAPNPA H BHECE YAbPIKAHUSA OT UMYLIECTBOTO HA AAHBLYHO
3AXLJIKEHOTO JIMLLE ALKUM AAHEK 32 NOCACAHUS AAHBUEH MEPHOA, HANPUMED JHKBHAATOD, CHHAHK K T.H)

.I_l 1.1 q)MJMLI(,CI(O e ]l2 lOpMLlMHbCKOJIMLlL, I -
111, Mme., npesnme. 11.2.1.

(avunus il - Hawnmerionaline

L1120 ECHATH/ATHY 11.2.2. EMK no

Cnywxeben Ne ot ! 3TP/EUK no

peructspa na HATT BYJICTAT

11.3. Tlocrosiien anpec/aapec Ha ynpabjicHue
ll 3.1 ﬂbp)}caﬂa

11.3.2 O6nacr |

| I I.3.3.__(}_6L_Iu_«_1]|m 11.3.4. Haceneno mscro (rp./c.)
| | ?

I 11.3.6. TTowenckn koa

11.3.5. Yauua, Ne, %K., 6., BX., an. |

11.4. Alipee 3a copeeionaenumns

[ § Anpecnbr cbBnaga ¢ Tosu no T. 11.3.
(ako cme ombens3anu ONYUAMA, 1e NONBAGATIME MA3u MouK()

4.1 Jlnpicans ; 1143, Obuma | 11.4.4, Haconeno macto (rp/c.
FL4 L Tnpacana 11.42. OGsacr 3. O6mmna 11.4.4. Haceneno msicro (rp./c.)

11.4.6. Tlowencku xon

11.4.5, Yauna, Ne, s.k., 6., Bx., an.

11.5. 3a oHraKr

11.5.1. Tenedon 115.2 E-mail

https://inetdec.nra.bg/pls/pub/DEC2009.IPUBATDEC.viewDocument?pdoc id=8420...

Yacr [11 - JIaHHU 33 AeiHOCTTA HA JAHBLYHO 3aAbLJIKEHOTO JIHLle

1.Kon na ocnosiiara aeiinocr 2369

2. Mscro 11a cronancka AeHHOCT B uyxGHHa | | |3. [Tonyuenn goxou or n3TouIUIM B UyxGHHA

4. TIpeoTcTbrBalie HA KOPHOPATUBEH AAWLK W/UAH HAMAEIIHME LA CYCTOROAHHS (muancos pesyntar no pexa Ha
rnasa asaaecer u sropa ot 3KTO
(Axo cme ombenasanu mosu peo, nonvileme pe() 4.1)

4.1, M3mbatieHue 11a u3MCKBANETO 10 1. 167, an.| or 3KIMO
(mosu ped ce nonvasa na OCHOBAHUE W l67 ai. 2om 3KI10)

5. llpunarane ua i, 189 v 3 v 3KT 10 - LPIKABHA MOMOILL 32 PCIHONAINO PA3BHTHE

6. JleHnocrra. enbpzana ¢ Hhpnollalmull'lla MUBECTHIMA, CC OCLULCCTBABA B ChOTBET nara oBIMIA 32 nepwo;t
O 1ONE 5 TOANIIY CHie/L I'OJMIATA Ha 3aRBLPUIBAIC HA IhPBOHAUANIZTA MIIBECTHIMS Chriacno wi. |89, ai.

T. 4 071 3KITO B cna no 31.12.2013 r. w/niw an. 189, 7. 3, 6. ,,8* o1 3KITO B cua o1 01.01.2016 .
(Hanvanienuemo na mosa ychosiie ce deknapupa cned sa6upiieane ia Rupeonauariama uneecnuyus. 3
cayuaume na npeodpasysaie ia OanBYHO 3A0BANCEHOMO AUYE MO3U Ped ce NONBAGH O NPASONPUeMIUKA. B
cayuaii ve cme ombersany mo3u ped, nonvaneme ped 6.1)

0.1. ToymHa 1a sapLpIBaIC 1A MHPBONAYATHATA HIBECTHLHS, 110 OTHOILCHHUE (1A KOSTO € [[ANMILE 3A/bIKCHUE 38
IPOJrhjKABAHE 1A ACHIIOCTTA 38 TICPHOJL NOIIE 5 FOMIIN CIIE/L FOAMNATA 1A 32BLPLIBAIE 1A [LPBONAYAIHATA UITBCCTULLMUS
(Tesu dannu ce dexaapupam na ocnosanue wi 189, an. 1, m. 4 om 3KIO 6 cuna 0o 31.12.2013 2. w/uny v, 189, m. 3, 6. "g"

11/04/2019
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Yact 1 - laHHM 3a A€HHOCTTA HA AAHBYHO 3A0BLJIKEHOTO JIHLIE

I RGO c¢ iodaaa aaciosigama (.}{'J'Cf.‘r‘!'}.-"(ﬂﬂfﬂ. dooaaeme (JUHb)HHHﬂ'(’.-’HH.:I.H;l{(}ﬁl{?l.;f

611

C2 1odang nacniosiyam e |

7. lefinocrra no un. 1896, an. 1 (nmpoussoacrso ua HenpepaGoTelia pacTUTEeNHA ¥ KUBOTHIICKA TPOAYKLIHS)
TNPOIL/KABA 12 CE OCLLUECTBSIBA 32 IEPUOLL OT 1OHE TPU FOJIKIIN Clie/l FOAKHATA L TpeoTcThiBane (Tezu
Oannu ce deknapupant 1a ochoganue un.1896, an. 2, m. 3 om 3KI10. B cuywaume na npeobpasysane na |
OaHBYHO 3A0BLANCEHOMO AUYe MO3U ped ce HONLAGA OM npasonpuemuuxa. B cryuaii ve cme ombensizanu mosu
ed, nonvareme ped 7.1)

7.1. Tonuna na NpeoTCTLNBAHE HA KOPMIOPATUBEH AAHBIC, 1O OTIOLICIHE Ha KOSTO € HANMLE 3ATLIDKCHHE 3a MPO/IbIkaBale
1a ASHHOCTTA 33 MEPUO/L TOLiE 3 TO/MHY CIEJL roMIaTa 11a npeoTeTbiBane (Ipu nosede om edna 200una 1a RPEoMCmMLAGaIe
3a nepuoda om 2010z, do 2o0unama, 3a kosmo ce nodasa Hacmoswyama deraapayus, dobaseme donvanumeniu pedose.)

L = -

SRS —_— = — [ 1

Yacr 1V - O6pasuy ¥ A0KYMEHTH, KOUTO ce IoAABAT 3aeAHO C AeKAaPAUNATA

Bup
Ne | (nocmaseme ommemra cpeu(y NAUMEHOBANICINO HA COLOMBEMIIIA 00pasen unn QOKYMeHNL CaMo KO2amo 20
NPUIIAZante KbM OeKNapanyusnae)

O6pazeu 101 1: Tpunoxenune Ne 1 33 non3pane Ha AaHBLYHH 061eKYEHNA N0 PpopmaTa Ha
| [npeoTcTbNBaHe HA KOPNOPATHBEH AAHLK WJH Ype3 NPU3HABAHE 32 AAHLYHU LIeJH HA
CHETOBOAHH PA3XOAH 32 AAPEHUST HJIH CTHIIEHANH

5 O6pazeu 1012: Mpuaoxerue Ne 2 3a neuanéu (noxoau), 06.10:KeHn B 4yOHHA, 32 KOUTO ce
npuaara MeToj 3a u30ArBane Ha ABOHHOTO AAHLYHO obaaraHe

3 |Toauwien oTyer 3a aeiiHoCTTA X

3.1 |Bx. Ne ¥ aaTa Ha roaMiIHUs OTUeT HA aeliHoeTTa 13 No 12983392/19.03.2019 .

He ¢ Hannue saahyskenne 3a nogaBaHe HA roAMIICH OTHET 32 AeHHOCTTA (ombeneceme, ako

0aHBUNO 3A0BANCCHOMO TUYE HE € OCHIYECMEACANO CTNOCH RO CMUCBAA 1a 3aKkona 3a

4 [cueniosodemsomo, 1o nodasa 200ulNG OaNbYHA OeKIGPA U HARPUMED 3a Oa dekrapupd

IAOBAKCENUC IA KOPROPAMUBEH OAHBE, GLINUKNARO 6 PEIVAINGM 1td NPeodpasysane Ha

CHEMoBOON A (hunancos pesyamam 3a dunbui yeau, wi opyau dannu. Tozu ped ce ombensica u
RO2amMo deknapayusma ce no0uGd Ha HAKOe Om ocnosanisma, nocowenu ¢ yacm I, p. 3)

5 \Apyru (nocoueme dpos na doxymenmume)
Hact V - Onpeaensine Ha AaHLUHUSE PUHAHCOB PE3YITAT N ALJDKUMHS KOPMOPATHBEH AAHBK
| ) MOKA3ATEJH  [umene] CYMA ]
a8 3 4 —1
OL1O NPUXOAH
L |(nocousam ce npuxodume no omuema sa npuxodume u pazxodume / omuema 0100 £ 449771834

et Qoxodume)

B T.4, HETHH NPHXO0AH OT NPOAAKOH
L1 |(nocousam ce nemuume npuxoou om npodaxcéu no cxcvaa na § 1, m. 49 om | 0110 417051576
P na 3KHO sve gptakae c S Lom D om P ua Sakona sa CUCmMOBOOCMBOmMo)
OBLHLO PA3XOAHU
2 |(nocormaan ce pazxoume no omuend 3a npUXOAUNe 1 pasxooume / omuema 0200 4850311.00
3a doxodume)

 CYETOBOJIEH ®UHAHCOB PE3YJTAT (p.1- p.2)
/AKko noayuenama paziuka e > 0, nowvineme peo 3.1; Ako noayuenama pasanka e <=0, |
nonvineme ped 3.2/

3.1 |CYETOBOAHA NEYAJIBA 0310

3.2 |CUETOBOJIHA 3ATYBA B | 0320 R 352592.66

https://inetdec.nra.bg/pls/pub/DEC2009.IPUBATDEC. viewDocument?pdoc id=8420... 11/04/2019
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Maer V- OnpcueJmHe HA AAHBLUHHA (PUHAHCOB PE3YJATAT U AbJKHMHUSI KOPNOPATHBEH 1AHBK

"pMXO}lI/I H pasxonu KOHUTO €€ U3KJIIOUBAT NpH onpeacsiHne Ha CIETOBOAHURA (Imuchon

()('mo npmoun KOWTO ¢€ U3KIJIOUBAT NPU OrlpCILLJISlHL 112 CUYCTOBOMIHS 0400 .00

dunancon pesysrar 3a jaunbuno npeodpasysaie = B
061110 pasxoau, KOUTO CE U3KJIIOUBAT MPH OLIPEACISIIE 114 CHETOBOMIIHS 0500 0.00

(pruancon pesynrar 3a jaibuno npeoGpasysare - R

cu ETOBOJAEH ®UHAHCOB PE3YJITAT 3A IAHBLUYHO MPEOBPA3YBAHE
(.1-p4)-(p2-p.s)

/Ako nonyuenama payiuka e >0, nonvaneme ped 6.1; Ako nosyuenama paznuxa e <=0,
nonviineme peo 6.2/

6.1 l'TOﬂO)K‘MTE.HEH

6.2 OTPI/I LlATEJlEH

NMPEOBPA3YBAHE HA CHETOBOAHUSA ®UHAHCOB PE3YJTAT

35259266

A, YBEJIMYEHHWA IHNDDLP CYMA Ne b. HAMAJIEHUSA HNDDBHP CYMA
['ojmim gairsuity amoprisainm
(un.54, i l) - exe. nosougna
| loanuminm cuerosounu pazxoiun 7010 140626.10 | |erwacska . Amopmusupyensu 8010 13290115
3a amMopTu3annu (rur.54. air.2) - akmugu'", NYoRuKyeana Ha T —
unmeprem cmparnuyama na HAIH
|| - www.nap.bg
Cuerososina 6anarcona =
CTOMHOCT 112 OTIUCaHUTE A I S
2 |aKTUBHM OT CUETOBOAHMA 7020 (.00 2 |QTIHMCANIATC AKTHBA OT AAIIL AT 8020 (.00
amopru3anuonch ruiai (4,60, BRSO TeT (G,
anl) an.2)
Pazxonu ot nocnenpaium Ilpuxoau ot nocneaBalwM OUEHKK
3 |ouenku Ha AKTUBY U TACHBH 7030 3763019 3 |ua aktveu M nacusk (un.34), n 8030 0.00
(un.34), B 7.4.: T,
Pa3sxonn OT NOCACABAILH
3.1 |OUEINKK K OT OTIMCBARE HA 7031 8§44.75 | | 3.1 [TPMXOJIM OT NOCACHBAILN OLEHIHN | g0 ; 0.00
B3EMAHUS KATO 11ECHOUPACMU 1a s3emanns (un. 34) ‘
(un. 34)
[Tpusnanrane 3a nannynu nenu na
Hpmllunallc 34 JIUTBLUHW 11E)TH 4 HEHPHIHATH Pa3X0ji1 OT 8040 22022.00
4 | TICTIPH3IATH 1IPUXO/A 01 7040 0.00 |7locucxu;aum OIEHKHM Na aKTHBH U
TOCHE/RAIIN OICHKH 1A AKTHBH ' _|nacuBk (1135 1 37), BT
n nacusy (411.35) 4 | |07 nocaeKBaIW oUeIIKY K OT 8041 8280.77
. - - L _ o OTHMCBANE 1A BIEMANMSI (L1, 37) | ne——
llpmnauam 38 1AITbYHA LENW A
HENPU3UATH PA3XOAM T10 442,
5 aJl.lF,)S ) 80342’ T O 8050 64014.02
Pasxoum, npejicrasasizaniy @3pellumc 11-pBo) — —
JIOXOMH HA MECTIM (PU3NUECCKU [puxoau/cyma, ¢ kosro ca
5 |mua no 3AADJI v pazxoau 3a 7050 7832.98 "?M'a”eH” CHCTOBOMIINES
3ALIOKUTEIIIN OCUTY PHTEILA =t PA3XOLL, OTICTEIN T10 HOBOJL 1A
BIIOCKH, CBLP3ANH ¢ 19X (.42, 3a0bIDKENIA 3a HEU3ILIATCHN
anl,5n8) 6 |noxoau no un.42, an.l vna 8060 0.00
3aQLIKEINS 38 1IEBICCCHH
3aADLIHTENTH OCHTY pUTEITITH
BHOCKM 110 w142, an.5 (ui.42,
B a4 v an.6, uzpeuenue nTopo)
PA3XOIH 30 AHXBH OT [tpusnasanc 3a fansdiin nenu na
npuiaraie na peskuma ta cilaa [ENPHSHATH PAsXOAH 3d memi ot
amamnvzaigs (nd3. .l ) lipriaraie na pexkuma 1ia cnada
s : N Kanuranusanms (143, an) -
6 {,’,')i( foawougna L”/)("),/\“ 7060 0.00 7 |6ac nosowa enpaskda 8070 0,00
[ ] PGy 1iphG il ,fwmf’”"u "Pecvaupane na cradamea
KNalimdatizafis nyoiukyeaid R ; ) M = )
Feop e T M Ranumeinizayus”, myéaukyeana |
(0417 - wyvsnap. be Ha nmepien cmpanyama na
e HAIT - ap.0g
7 Pasxostm o1 JiIeH v 6pak 7070 2614.86 8 [lTpuxouu, BL3NMKHANM 110 1H0BOJL 8080 0.00
| [ebraacuo ‘IJI.23,13 T, W = Ha HCHpU3HATH 10 4L 28 Jinticn |
| 7. pasxoan ot auitcu ta 7071 0.00 u Opax na akruiK (Wi.29)
| | Pwarorpainu u kpatorpaiiim

https://inetdec.nra.bg/pls/pub/DEC2009.IPUBATDEC.viewDocument?pdoc id=8420...
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Yacr V - Onpenensive Ha AaHbYHUA qmuancon PE3YSITAT U AbKHMHS KOPNOPATHBEH AAHBK
AKTHBH C ml(moquMe Ha |
marepualliiv 3anacu (4n.28,
| ja) - - L
Pa3XO/IM OT JIUMCH H 6pa|< Ha
7.2 marepuanuu 3anacu (u.28, 7072 2179.08
an2)
7 3 pasxon sa JJAC cbrnacHo wi. 7073 f 435.78 |
28, an. 4.
NocneABaLy pa3xoau,
OTYETEHH 10 NOBOJ Ha
7.4 B3eMane, BL3HUKHAIIO B 7074 0.00 |
pe3ynTaT 11a HEMPU3HATH JIUNCU
1 Opak na aktusu (4n.28, an.5) B -
Pasxou, Henpuaiiaty 3a
8 nmawbunu uenu coriacHo 4a. 26, 7080 19348.70
BT, 4.:
paL‘R‘XOll!/l:.llC(;B’bpSaHM'f: . [Tpuxoau, BL3HUKHAIM 110 NOBO
AenHoC! 1’a " ”””61«)‘”'0 feea 7081 19266.23 g Ha HENPU3HATH 33 IANBLUHH ek 8090 : 0.00
aoxcy;éeu‘ra]nuozo OCHOBaHU pasxomy 1o 4. 26, 1. 6 (41, 27, ; .
(un. 26, 1. 112) an1,1.2)
pasxXo/u 3a HauMCaACHH rMoGH,
KOH(MCKaLlMH, CAHKUMY K1 7082 8247
JIMXBHU 3a Npocpoume (Hi1.26,
T.6)
Cyma Ha moracenure
3aIbIOKEHUS, 38 KOUTO €
10 npusoxen un.46, an.1 npes 8100 0.00
npeaxoaHa roauHa (446, an.3,
y T.1
9 Cyma Ha 3abmkenusta (4n.46, 7090 . 0.00 | )
an.l) N [Tpuxoau, OTHETEHH MO MOBOL |
OTIIHCBAHE HA 3abJKEHMsI, 3
11 kouto e npunosxeH un.46, an. 1 8110 0.00
npes npeAxofHa roauta (446,
an3, 1.2)
Boie. nomowna cnpaska
“penacane na danvunu 3azybu”,
NYGRUKYBaHA Ha uHmepHem
12 emparnuyama na HAIT - 8120 0.00
www.nap.bg
llpucnapane ua nanbuna sary6a,
BT.Y..
{21 Aainuna 3ary6a OT U3TOUHHK B 8121 0.00
cTpalara
JalbyHa 3aryda oT H3TOUHUK B
12.2 qymﬁnnﬁl npu NpujaraLe Ha 8122 0.00
MeToa "ocBobox1aBate ¢
nporpecus”
Jai'bina 3ary6a oT U3TOYHHK B
12.3|4yx6uHa npy npunarane Ha 8123 0,00
mMeTofa "aanbueH kpenny” B
JApyry yBenuuenus na Hpyru namaneuus Ha
CHETOROANMA (PHHAHCOB CYETOBOAHKSA (PHHAIICOB peaylITar
peayiTar - gxe. nomowHa - 624C. noMOwHa chpaska "Hpvetr
enpaaara "fpyeu yeenuuenus u YGEAUYCHUA U HAMANEHUA HA _
10 {natetenus na cuemoeoonus 7100 16982.87 | 13 |cuemosoonua gpunancoa 8130 3148138
thrnanens pesyimam no peda pesyamam no peda na IKITO",
na 3KIT10", nybauxyeana na HYOIUKYBAHA Ha HmepHem
UHmMepHem cmpanuyama Ha cmpanuyama na HAIT -
HATI - www.nap.bg WWW.nap. bg
| 7 BCHYKO YBEJIMYEHUSA 0700 24503570 | 8 BCUYKO HAMAJIEHUSL 0800 250418.55 I
(o7 pea 1 no pen 10) o (o7 pea I no pen 13) | ”
|
- |
JAHBYEH ®UHAHCOB PE3YJTAT
(p- 6.1 unu p. 6.2 +p. 7 om xonona A —p. 8 om xonona k)

https://inetdec.nra.bg/pls/pub/DEC2009.IPUBATDEC.ViewDocument?pdoc_id=8420..‘ 11/04/2019



) B - ~nonvaneme ped 9.2/

9.1 JAHBYHA IEYAJIGA

9.2 IAHBYHA 3ATYBA

10 JAHBUYHA CTABKA

1T TTOJIATALL CE KOPITOPATUBEH JIAHDLK (0. 9.1 xp. 10)
NOJIATALL CE KOPNNOPATUBEH JAHbK npu npunaraite na metoan

12 3a usbarsane va ABOIIHO AaHbUHO obaarane (p. 3 uau ped § om cnpasra |
na oopazey 1012 - Hpunoocenue e 2)

13 IPEOTCTBNEH KOPIMMOPATUBEH JJAHBLK

FOIMWIEH KOPMTOPATUBEH NAHDBK ciea npeorcrhnsaneto (p. 11

wan p. 12 —p.13)

HATIPABEHW ABAHCOBUW BHOCKH 3A TOAMHATA (llonvaneme

mo3u ped cAed YCIManosaane Ha INOYHUS PA3Mep HA GHEeCenme (8aHCOBY

BHOCKI 30 200UHANA YPE3 NPE2ICO HA OANDUHO-0CULYPUINCIHAING CMENKA U

upes nouckeane na ungopsayus om HAI)

BHECEH KOPINOPATHUBEH JAHbLK INPE3 FOAMHATA B caryuanTe
NpyY MPEeKPATABAHE € IMKBUAAIHMS MU € 00SIBSIBAHE B HECHLCTOSITEJIHOCT

14

(Ha rosu pes ce nocouna suecerust npes 2018 1. j1airbk 1pu npekparspaie.

16 Koitro na ocnosanue wi. 160, an. 2 (orm.) or 3KIO ce npucnaja ot
JUBJDKHMUS POJIMILETT KOPHOPATHBRCH AAHBLI 3 FOAUIATA 1A TTPEKPATABANETO,
Hotrbiine e 1o3u pest ¢ie)l yCTainonsiBaie ia ToUius pasmep 1a BIECe s
JQILK UPE3 NPEIie/l HA AANLUI0-0CHTYPUTENHATA CMETKA WK Upe3
noucksaiie na niopmaitns o1 HAIL)

PA3JINKA 3A BHACSHE
17.1 (Tozu ped ce nonvasa, ko2amo noayuenama paznuKa e ROIOICHMenna
GeAUYUHG.)

HAJABHECEH JAHBK
(Tosu peo ce NoNvAGA, KOZUMO NOTYHENAMA PASIUKA ¢ OMPUYAMETHA
17.2 Seruvuna wi ityaa. )
" abenexcka: Hadenecenusm oanwvi uje ROCIYIICH 3¢ NO2ACIGANE 1G OGHDYHI

sadvacenus no peda na wi. 169, an. 4 om AOITK, aro ne e oméeassan ped
/8.

Bu3cranossiade no peaa va paspen | ot raasa wecrHagecera na JOIK
B cayuail, ue na mosu ped cme ombennzann ommemxama, nocoveme
Banxosa cuemra na danvuIo 3a0BAACCIONIO JUKE, NO Koamo da Tvde
ew3cmanosen danvra:

EUK no 3TP/BYJICTAT

battca IBAN

PA3JINKA 3A BHACAHE/HA/IBHECEH AAHLK (p. 14 —p. I15—-p. 16)

0910
0920
1000
1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

1710

1720

1800

FO/IMHATA

19.1 Meceunn — chriacHo . 84 or

P lsicno A

3AABJKEHUE 3A U3BBPILUBAHE HA ABAHCOBU BHOCKH, BU/I MU OBII] ]
PASMLEP HA ONPEJAEJEHUTE (IEKJAPUPAHUTE) ABAHCOBU BHOCKMH 3A

(Tasu undpoparanun ce nonvasa 3a werume na onpeoeiasne na auxaea no wi. 89 om 3K 110.)

1910

Yact V - Onpeaenane Ha AaHbYHUA QUHAHCOB PE3YJTAT H ALJ/DKHMUS KOPNOPATHBEH 1aHbK |
/AKO nosysenama pazanka ¢ >0, nonwvaneme ped 9.1; Ao nosyuenanta pazuka e <=0,

BIC

Page 7 of 10

0.0
357975.51
10%
(.00

(.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(.00

0,00

19.2 Tpumeceunn — cnraacuo ua. 85
~lov3kno

Jla |

Jara, 1a KosITo U3TuUa CpoKbT 3a
BIIACSHIC 1A IhpBaTa TpUMEceUlia
ABalcoBa BIOCKA Clie)
reobpisysaiero

Ha

Tpumeceunu — enraacto . 118

19.3 wan wi. 147 ot 3KIMO

Tpumeceunn — enraacuo wi, 83,
an. 3 or 3KIMO
Janbuio 3aabiskenoTo Jinie ne
€ 30 BLJUKCHO /12 3BBLPIIBA
19.5/aanconu Buocku v He e Ja
HPHAOKUIO0 U, 83, as. 3 01
3KITO

CYMA, BbPXY KOSITO CE ABJIACH JIMXBA 110 UJL, 89 OT 3KNO
(Tosu peo ne ce nonviga, axo e omoennsan peo 19.4 wa 19.5)

19.4

https://inetdec.nra.bg/pl s/pub/DEC2009. IPUBATDEC.viewDocument?pdoc
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UYact V - Onpeaensine HA AaHLYHUA GUHAHCOB PE3YJTAT M ALJIKHMHS KOPNOPATHBEH AAHLK

20.1{3a meceunu aBaHcoBu BHOcku: p, 14— (p. 19.1 + 0,2 x p. 19.1) 2010 0.00 -
Axo nomywenama pasnuka e ompuyamenna 6eAUNUHG UM HYAQ, HA NO3Y ped
ce 3anucea Hyad. B _ _ B

3a TpuMeceYHH ABAHCOBH BHOCKH :

0,75xp 14~ (p. 19.2+0,2xp. 19.2) unu 0,75 x p. 14— (p. 19.3 + 0,2 x p. _
20.2|1719.3) 2020 .00
Axo nonywenama paznuka e ompuyamenna 8eauNUNG UAU HYAQ, HA MO3Y ped
ce 3anucea Hyad.

Yact VI - [lexnapupane Ha B3AHMOOTHOLIEHHS ChC CBbP3AHY JHLA

(Covpsanu nuya ca mesu no § 1, m. 3 om /AP na JOIIK. IOpucouxyuu ¢ npedepenyuanen danvuen peacum ca mesu no
cmucvaa na § 1, m. 64 om JIP na 3K170.)

No ITOKA3ATEJN o CYMA
| O6u1 pazmep 11a CHETOBOAHNTE NPUXOAN OT B3AMMOOTHOIICHHUS ChC CBBP3AHM JIHLA, B 159830432
(T
L1 |- comia o1 ropueankitnmn ¢ npeiepenimanen aanuen pesum 0.00
) OBt pasmep Ha CUETOBOMITUTC PA3XONH OT B3AUMOOTHOUIENHS CLC CBLP3AHM JTHLA, B 125496722
T
2.1 |- ¢ muua oT IOPHCAMKLUNN ¢ nped)epetiinanet AalbUeH PEdum 0,00
3 Biemanns ot cebpsaiii nuua — canao (0cTarsi) khM 31 JeKEMBPH Ha ChOTBETIIATA 2320.29
VOJLLEY, B T.4.: —
.1 |- ot inua ot 10pucarKkIMK ¢ NpedepenLnaneH farbyeH peKumM 0.00
4 3aXbMKEHHs KbM CBBLP3AHH LA — Caao (0CTaThic) kbM 3 1 AekeMBpH 11a CHOTBETHATA 1799299.93
roauia, B T.4.. = -
4.1 |- KM NHLA OT I0PUCANKLINK ¢ NpedepeHLMaNCH TaHbYCH peskim ' 0.00

3abenencia: He ce nonvneam dannu 3a: cevpsanu nuyano $ 1, m. 3, 6. ,a”, 6", u 1" om HP na JONK. Togea ca:

* CvApy3ume, POOHUHUME O NPAGA TUHUS, NO Chpebpena - 00 Mpema cmenen GKIIOYUMENHO, U POOHUNUINE HO
ceamoeemeo. M3kniovenuemo we ce npunaza camo npu 83aunoomnouenus Mexcoy mupeoscky npeonpusmus
(ET) na nocouenume nuya.

* pabomodamen u pabomuux;

* Juyama, eGHomo om Koumo e Hanpaguao dapenue Ha opy2omo.

He ce nonvasam dannu sa nuya, naemu no mpyoosu npacoomuowenus no cyucvaa na § 1, m. 26 om AP na 3axona
3¢ danviyume 6opPxY d0X00UMe HA GUIULECKUME AU,

He ce cuamam 3a cevpsany auya 3a yenume na O0ekiapupanemo muvpeosckume opyacecmea ¢ nad 50 wa cmo
AopICasIO unt 0BUUHCKO Yudcimue u dvpacasnume npednpusmus no ui. 62, an. 3 om Tvpeoeckus 3axon camo
noOpaodu 0OCMORINGACMEOMO, 4e UM 06Uy APUHYUNGT —  OLPICACAMA/OBUUNAMA,  GRAIOYUMEIND  KO2AMO
RPUHYUNATBIT ¢ e0HO U CVLIYO MUHUCMEPCMGO. 30 APeORPUAMUSMA RO NPEOXOOHOMO U3Peuenue GCUNKY OCMANN
Kpumepuu 3a cevp3arnocm, yemanosenu 6 § 1, m. 3 om [P na JOITK, ce npunazam no o6uus peo.

Hacr VII - lexnapupane Ha u3BbpLIEHO CKPUTO pa3npeaeeHte HA Neya6aTa

(Tasu wacm ce nonvasa om OanvunO 300vANCEN AUKA, KOUMO NPE3 200URAMA CA H3GHPIUUIIL CKPUMO paznpedenenie
Ha nevanbama no cmucvna na § 1, m. 5 om JIP na 3K110)

O6w pasmep Ha cymuTe, NPeICTABASBAILN CKPHTO pa3npeeseHne HA neyanbaTa 0.00

B rasu cnpaska ce ocousa ofumst pasmep na cymure ¢ XapaKrep na  CKPUTO  PaslpeACsiCiiue  11a
Heuan6aTa, BINOUMTEILHO 1 PA3XOMTE,NIPSACTABSBALILA CKPUTO PASTIPEASIENHC 1A LICUANOATA, KOWTO C& BIUIOUBAT 1
Cymara. nocouena na peji 10. kotona A or uacr V.,

https://inetdec.nra.bg/pls/pub/DEC2009.IPUBATDEC.viewDocument?pdoc_id=8420... 11/04/2019



Page 9 of 10

llacT VI - Jaubk Bbpxy pasxoaure

(Tasu wacm ce nonwviea na ocnosanue yn, 217, an. 1 u 5 om 3KI10)

Havbuna  [Jlanwang)  Jumoxum Heobnaracmu

Nu Bux pasxoit | ociosa cTaBKa | b PN

] : s 4 135 I 6 |

1Mo u w204, an. 1, 1.1 - NPEACTABHTEIIH PA3XOJH 3518.04 | 10% 351.80 | X

2 iI'[o 32]204 an. 1, 1.2 - counanun pasxoam, npeaocmBeHn B 79410 11 10% 7641 0.00
LTy I — B
ITo un, 204, an. 1, T. 4 — pa3xoau B 1aTypa, CBbP3aHH C

3 |npefocTaBeHu 3a AMYHO MON3BAHE AKTHBH U/MiK ¢ , 0.00 10% 0.00 X
n3nonssane Ha epeonan -

Yacr IX — lexnapupane ua Hanpased u3bop 3a 06/1araHe Ha 10XOAUTE B HATYPA, NPEACTABASIBALIM PA3XOAU B HATYPA

(Pasxoou ¢ namypa ca mesu no cmucvaa na § 1, m. 83 om AP na 3KI10. Tazu wacm ce nonvasa na ocnosanue wi. 24,
an. 3 om 3axona 3a danvyume gvpxy doxodume na usuueckume auya 3AADI) ¢ve spvaxa ¢ un. 217, an. 3 om 3KIO0. )

I(ozamo He e nonvaena masi wacm, 00azanemo na 00xXo0ume 6 Hamypa ce uIsLPUISE 1O peoa na 3,ZIﬂ DIl

l U3bop 3a oﬁnaraHe no peaa Ha 3Kﬂ0 3a _—2_&9— I - Aa . X
2. H3bop 3a oGaaraue no peaa Ha 3KMO 3a 2018 r. Ja

3abenexcku: 1. Ha peo | ce nocousa 200unama, credsawa 200unama, 3a Kosimo ce omHacs 200UINama danvuna
Oexnapayus, kozamo e usbpan pedvin no 3KI10 3a obrazane na doxodume 6 namypa, npedCmAsnABAUY PaFXoOU &
Hamypa.

2. Ped 2 ce nonwaea om auya, Koumo ca HOGOYYPEOeHU npe3s 200UHAMA, 30 KOAMO Ce OMHACS 200UMHAMA OaHbYHA
Oexnapaijis, Kozamo 3a masu 200una e uzbpan pedvm no K10 3a obaazane na doxodume ¢ namypa,
npedcmasnasau pasxoou 6 namypa. Tosu ped ce Nonvasa 1 om Auya, KOumMo 3a NPeOXOOHAMA 200UHa He ca Byl
3A0BAICEHH U 1ie ¢a nOOanU 200UUIHA OAHBYNA OeKAAPAYUS, KO2AMO 3G 200UNANG, 30 KOSMO CE OMHACS HACMOSUAMA
Oexaapayus, e uzbpar pedvm no 3KITO sa obnazane na doxodume @ Hamypa, npedcmasnseauyu pasxodu @ Hamypa.

Yacr X — ﬂemapupaue HA BHAA ¥ Pa3Mepa HA ABAHCOBUTE BHOCKH

(Tasu wacm ce nonviasa na ocnoganue wi. 87a, an. 1 om IKIO. /Tuyama, koumo ca 0c60600enu OM ABAHCOBL BHOCKI 1t
neca usbpaau 0a npassam MAKUBA CH21ACHO Y. 83, an. Jom 3l<' 110, 1ne nonvaAsam masu wacm. )

_ o T pumece nm BHOCKH 1 OCHOBIITHC
I Meceunn snocky X 2. T puNiceet i niockn |
i 83, a3
4. Pasmep 1 onpeienetaTa Mccumuﬂ'rpm-[ccclum ABAHCONA BHOCKA 0.00 | Jis,
5. IIpt.mu-r,mmm. Hil ABAHCORN BHOCKN 111 ocHoBanie 1w Y1 or 3KI0O

O, Pasmep 11 OnpeaIeHT MECEHTII/TPIMECCH IR ABAICORA BIOCKH e/ 0.00 | 1n
HPCOTCTBIBAIC B PE3YITAT Ha npuaaraye ua o, 91 or 3KIT0O : ’

Jabeneocku: 1B caynaii ve wa ped 11 ont wacm Ve nocovena cvsta ¢ pasaep wao 3 000 000 .. ce oméeaniea m. 1
2. B eaywedt we wa ped 11 om wacm Ve noconena eyt 6 pazsiep om 300 000,00 a6, do 3 000 000 a6, arimonimento,

ce omGeasiea . 2

3B eayyedr we eme waipanie da pprioscime w83, ax 3 om KO w wa ped L om vacm Ve nocowena Cyni G

pazatep oo 300 000 ae. erenodmenno, ce ombenszaa m. 3.

oA Byt s apOKIOTIEI Qe (RIaneos PV e omprIanes i IEVIGEE GO T CC OGO
1A w6,

3. Kocame dersaparpunnie ce nodaee i ocnosae v 75, an. 3 am SO, mane onpeiare ciiedéa da ce nonvin o

HOCHICH WG KAIIIG ¢ DRAG RORTNGHE G16 GO N0OUdenania 200 Qg DCxaapainn qhe GBI ¢

KESHHO O ROOQGa HOaCemostigenine K AT R e wai it A ca wanenonm RN e o s [HEIMELED M) Gene

CHUCHRPHITINE AECICOGU BROCKN, CHIIINE ©¢ Wat i Wes noodasaiie i oeriapaigun no w88 om 3600

https://inetdec.nra.bg/pls/pub/DEC2009.IPUBATDEC. viewDocument?pdoc id=8420... 11/04/2019
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Hacr X1 — UpeHTHdHKAUMOHHY TARHH 32 COOCTBEHHUNTE, AKUMOHEPUTE HITH CbAPYKHALUTE B HYHAECTPAHHO
I0PHANYECKO JTHLiEe, H3BbPLUBALLO CTONMAHCKA J€HHOCT B CTPAHATA YPe3 MSICTO HA CTONMAHCKA AeHOCT

(Tasu uacm ce nonvaea Ha ocHosanue un. 92, an. 7 om 3KI10. He ce nocousam udenmupukanuonnu 0aunu 3a
colcmsenuume, QK{UHOHEPUMe UK COOPYICHUUUME ¢ UYNCOeCHPAHHOMO I0PHONYCCKO JILIE I 30 PAIMEPA HA MAXHONIO
yuacmue, kozamo pasmepom Ha moga yuacmue ¢ nod 10 na cmo.)

CobeTBeHnK/Axunonep/CbapyiHuk 1

2. MaenTuduraunoHeH Homep B IbPXKABATA, HA KOATO JIMLETO €
1. Ume/HaumenoBaHue EeaTo

3. Aapee B thpacaABATA, HA KOATO COGCTBEHUKBT, AKIHOHCILT NAK ChAPYIRHHKBT e MeCTHO JHue
3.1 dnpixasa |3.2. Haceneno macro (rp./c.) [3.3.06mnact/paiion 3.4. MowmeHckn Koa

[ | _
3.5, Yauua 3.6 Ne 3.7. ETax 3.8. An. 3.9. Keapran
I | !

4. Pasmep ua yuactuero (8 %)

Hayuonanna azenyus 30 npuxodume obpadomea u 3auumaca susrume Bu dannu, Cv0BPazHO uBUCKSaHUAMA HA 3aKond 30 |
sawfuma na nuunume oanny (33/114) u Peanamenm (EC) 2016/679 na Esponetickus napaamenm u va Cveema om 27 anpui
2016 2. IToseue nodpobrocmu 3a aneaxcumenmune na Hayuonarmama A2CHYUA 30 NPUXOOUMe, 8 KAYecheomo 1i Ha
QOMURUCIPAMOp HA AUYHU OQHRY, MOJCeme da Hamepume & ,, [Tonumuka no 3auwuma na AusHume danHu @ Hayuonannama
azexyus 3a npuxodume ", nYGIUKY6ana Ha unmeprem adpec: www.nap.bg uau 0a ce cawpaceme ¢ Hac Ha umein adpeca Ha
Hudpopmahonus yyenmnp na HATT: infocenter@nra.bg w mesedion: 0700 18 700
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